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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY.
Thursday, 3 November, 1887.

Question.— Return.— Motion for Adjournment— Tele-
graph Stations on the Border—Roads in the Cook
District—Russell River Gold Field.—Formal Motion.
—DPetition. — Acting Chairman of Committees.—
Maryborough and Urangan Railway Act Amendment
Bill—second reading.—Motion for Adjournment—
Mining Industry —South Brishane Railway Con-
tractor.—— Warwick to Thane’s Creck Railway.—
Adjournment.

The SPEAKER took the chair at half-past
3 o’clock p.m.

QUESTION.
Mr. PALMER asked the Chief Secretary——

When do the Government intend to call for tenders
for a weekly service by steamer from Brisbane to Nor-
manton and Burketown ?

The CHIEF SECRETARY (Hon. Sir 8. W.
Griffith) replied—

The whole matter of the Northern mails is now under
the consideration of the Government, and they hope
to be able to make very materially improved arrange-
ments. I am not prepared to give a categorical answer
to the hon. member’s question.
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RETURN.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS (Hon. H.
Jordan) laid on the table of the House a return
called for by the hon. member for Wide Bay,
Mr. Bailey, with reference to timber-getters’
grievances.

Mr. MOREHEAD: Has the hon. gentleman
moved that the papers be printed ?

The PREMIER : No.

Mr. MOREHEAD : T beg to move that the
papers be printed.

The PREMIER : The motion cannot be made
except by the Minister who lays the papers on
the table.

The SPEAKER : The hon, member will have
to give notice of motion.

Mr. MOREHEAD: I will give notice of
motion, then, for to-morrow.

MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT,

TELEGRAPH STATIONS ON THE BORDER.—ROADS
IN THE 'CooX DISTRICT.—RUSSELL RIVER
Gorp FIBLD.

Mr, MOREHEAD said: Mr. Speaker,—I
intend to bring before the House what I consider
a grievance that my constituents are suffer-
ing under from the gross neglect of the
Telegraph Department, and I think my state-
ments will be borne out by the junmior
member for Darling Downs, who has greater
local knowledge than I have with regard to this
particular grievance. Some little time ago the
Government, or the Postmaster-General, in his
wisdom, closed the telegraph office at Dirram-
bandi, on the ground that the réceipts from that
office were not sufficient to warrant its continu-
ance. Since then the Queensland Government
have also closed the telegraph office at Mun-
gindi, a township with a considerable amount of
business on the border, the reason given by the
department being that the receipts were not
sufficient ; but I argue, having been Postmaster-
General of the colony at one time myself, that it
is not indispensable that a telegraph office should
be directly a money-returning establishment.
That is to say, that there are many places
where telegraph offices may exist, and do exist,
where the mere monetary return is not equiva-
lent to the money spent upon them in one
sense. Now, with regard to the former case,
I may point out that there are many settlers on
the Bulloo River with wives and children and
houses to look after, and that the station at
Dirrambandi was the only means they had of
knowing when a flood was coming down. That the
river does not come down quite as fast as the
telegraphic despatch, even the Premier will
admit ; but I would point out that the station was
established in the first instance, and afterwards
abandoned for the economical reasons I have
given, and it is for the reason I have given that
the station should be restored. I had every
reason to suppose, from the Under Secretary
for the Post Office, that that station would be
restored, but I have received a letter within the
last few days stating that the Government have
decided not to restore it. Now, with regard to
Mungindi station, the position is very much
worse. Not so long ago the Government of
Queensland laid out a township there, erected
a telegraph office, post office, police court, and
Custom-house, and allotments were sold to people
who thought that the township was likely to be
of a fairly permanent character. A great deal
of business has been done there, and I am
informed, on authority I cannot doubt, that
one storekeeper last year paid in duty alone
£700. But the Government, finding that the
revenue from the telegraph office wasnot sufficient
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to pay expenses, closed the office, and transferred
the whole business to the Government of New
South Wales, who have not townships on the
other side of the river; but there is a small
private dwelling that is used as a telegraph
station. So here is the anomaly, that if a resi-
dent of the township wishes to send a telegram
in his own colony he hag to cross the river,
and send a telegram through the New South
‘Wales office at a cost of 2s. for the privilege of
doing so. Now, thatis the way in which the Tele-
graph Department appears to be run at the present
time. A rage for economy seems suddenly to have
seized the Government. I have given the facts,
A Custom-house officer is established in this place;
a considerable amount of business is done there ;
a large number of stock pass through; and yet,
because the telegraph office shows an admitted
deficit, it is closed, and the department hands
the business over to New South Wales. Now, I
do not know, but I think I have heard or read,
that the relations between Queensland and New
South Wales are not of a highly friendly
nature. I have thoughs$, from what I have
read and heard, that the relationship between
these two knights is somewhat strained. We
have been told and have read that the Pre-
mier of New South Wales considered it quite
sufficient to tell the Premier of Queensland, “Oh,
it is all right.” T admit at once that I do not
share the opinion of the Premier of New South
‘Wales, who was at the time in what to an ordi-
nary individual would be a very tight place.
That gentleman is so used to it, however, that he
probably treated it asa sortof by-the-way business,
which need not interfere with his going on with
the ordinary business of the State. Nevertheless
nothing can excuse his want of courtesy to the
Government of this colony, no matter who they
may be. T hope the Premier will look into this
matter of the closing of the station at Dirram-
bandi. I admit it is not a station where the
revenue may be expected directly to defray the
cost of keeping it open, but it is of great impor-
tance to the stockowners and the residents on the
banks of the Bulloo River, because through it they
were enabled to leave when the river was coming
down in flood, and thus had an opportunity of
removing their flocks and herds from danger. I
pointed out the position of affairs connected with
the closing of the office at Mungindi fully and
fairly, and I say it is not right after the town-
ship was formed and the lots sold, and the
residents led to believethatit would be permanent,
and receive the ordinary support which such town-
ships receive from the State—it is not right after
that has been done to close the office and compel
Queenslanders who may require to use the
telegraph to cross the river and send their tele-
grams through New South Wales.

The PREMIER : When did that oceur ?

Mr. MOREHEAD: A short time ago. I
cannot say exactly when, but I know that office
is closed, and I have had a reply from the
Postmaster-General to the effect that he does
not see his way to re-open if.

The PREMIER said : Mr. Speaker,—I am
not able to give any detailed answer to the hon.
gentleman, because I have not heard of these
matters before. I know that the present Post-
master-General and his predecessor were engaged
for some time in endeavouring to effect all proper
economy in the department. Of course, every
place where the economy is practised objects
and thinks it should be practised somewhere else.
It appears to me at present that the hon. mem-
ber has made out a good case for the reopening
of the office at Mungindi; but as to the case of
Dirrambandi I do not think his reasons with
respect to that are so good. I will take the
earliest opportunity of consulting the Postmaster-
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General on the subject. As to making the tele-
graph offices pay, unfortunately we know that
the department does not pay.

Mr., MOREHEAD: They may pay indi-
rectly.

The PREMIER : Yes; I admitthat it cannot
be accepted as a rule that they must pay to be
kept open. I do not know how the hon. gen-
tleman connects this matter with consultations
with the Governmentof another colony, Thehon.
member has referred to whathe calls the “strained
relations” between Sir Henry Parkes and myself.
So far it appears there are no relations at all exist-
ingbetweenus. Thavecommunicated with himand
have usually had no reply to my communications.
I will take the opportunity, now that the hon.
gentleman has referred to this matter, to speak
of what has been stated in the Press as to the
answer Sir Henry Parkes is said to have given me
in reference to New Guinea. The statement
reported to have been made by him to a reporter
of the Press, I think, is that he told me it would
be all right, when I wanted to know what he pro-
posed to do. That answer, even supposing
that he gave it to me—and I do not recollect his
having done so—would be unsatisfactory, because
what would be “all right ” would depend upon
what he considered ‘“all right.” The answer he
is reported to have made in Parliament is,
that whatever New South Wales was bound to
do she would do. I do not remember his
saying that either, but even if he did say
it, it amounts to absolutely nothing. The
point is that New South Wales was no longer
bound to do anything in consequence of the
change made in the arrangements. The pro-
posals agreed to by New South Wales had been
altered, and New South Wales was, therefore,
perfectly free, and I wanted to know what
action New South Wales would take with
respect to the altered proposals. To say under
the circumstances that “New South Wales
would do what she was bound to do,” when she
was not bound to do anything, was certainly no
answer upon which this Government could act.
I am not prepared to say he did not make use of
such expressions, but if he did, it is clear I could
have considered them no answer at all, and
probably forgot them.

Mr. ALLAN said : Mr. Speaker,—The leader
of the Opposition has referred to me ns having
some knowledge of the district in which these
offices were situated. I may say I have myself
received some complaints that two telegraph
offices had been closed in that one district. The
Premier said the leader of the Opposition
had made out a very good case for reopening the
office at Mungindi, An equally good case could
be made out for the reopening of the office at
Currawildi, or Dirrambandi as it is now called.
I have lived in that part of the country for
some years and speak with a knowledge of the
place. The principal reason for keeping those
offices open was that the whole of that country
from St. George down to the border was liable
to heavy floods, and unless people got rapid in-
formation that a flood was coming down they were
indanger of losing almost the wholeof theirstock.
In some parts of the country they have bridges
at different places across to Culgoa, and when
they get telegrams that floods are coming they
rush the stock across those bridges and get them
on some high ridges on the western side of the
Culgoa, The distance between St. George and
the next telegraph office, which is in New South
Woales, is 130 odd miles, and the distance
between St. George and the border is 120 odd
miles. It would pay this colony, therefore, to
keep Dirrambandi, if only as a line repairer’s
station, for if the line got down in flood-time
it would take a man a week to ride down
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and back a distance of 260 miles to find
where the accident had happened. I am
sure that the owners of the stations in the
district—Boombah, Gulnarbar, Doondi, Curra-
wildi, Noondoo, Cowildi, Currawillinghi, Hia-
moningindi, Whenbah, Woolerina, Brenda,
and many others — would join to guarantee
the expense to the Telegraph Department.
It is very poor policy to shut up an impor-
tant office like that. It has been very
useful in the past in saving stock, and I am sure
that if the office is shut up one of those floods
will cost more than keeping the office open for
twenty years. I trust that when the Premier is
looking into the case of Mungindi he will also
look into that of Dirrambandi.

My, HAMILTON said: Mr. Speaker,—I
shall take advantage of the motion for adjourn-
ment to say a few words on the same subject.
My district is suffering from similar disabilities.
Representations were made recently to the Post
Office Department by the secretaries of the
progress associations at Herberton and Mount
Albion, calling attention to the necessity for
extending the telegraph line from Watsonville
to Irvinebank and Mount Albion. The answer
given by the department was that they were
not certain the extension would pay, and
they required guarantees before they would
grant what was asked, For the extension from
Watsonville to Irvinebank, a distance of ten
miles, they want a cash guarantee of £300 for
three years and an office suitable for the operator
free of all expense for two years ; while, if it is

_extended an additional five miles to Mount

Albion, it would be on similar terms, the amount
to be guaranteed being £475. The total amount
to be guaranteed for an extension of fifteen miles
i3 £975, with free buildings for a couple of years
for the telegraph operators. I think that is very
unfair, considering the treatment that is received
by other places that are not subject to the same
want of communication as this portion of the
colony, I notice in looking over the report
of the Postal Department that there are many
places in the colony where the cost of conducting
the telegraphic operations is greater than the
returns. At Aramac, for instance, the total
expenditure is £378 17s. 2d., and the total cost
£439 12s. 11d., leaving a loss of £65 15s. 9d. per
year. Then at Beenleigh the total income is £162
7s. 1d. and the total expenditure £275 17s. 11d.,
leaving aloss of £113 10s. 10d. At Caloundra the
total income is £40 10s. 6d., and the total expen-
diture £224 1s. 2d., leaving a loss of £183 10s. 6d.
I suppose the Caloundra individuals have to
thank the hon. member for Enoggera, Mr.
Bulcock, for that, Then again, we have Cleve-
land, another favoured constituency, where the
total income is £46 19s. 8d., and the total expendi-
ture £175,leaving alossof £128. At Drayton, again,
the income is £20 10s. 3d., and the expenditure
£135 8s. 8d., leaving a loss of £114 18s. 5d.
At Eulo the income is £223 1s. 5d., and the
expenditure £465 T7s., leaving a loss of
£242 5s. 7d. At Hewittville the income is
£74 1s. 10d., and the expenditure £233 8s. 3d.,
leaving a loss of £157 6s. bd. Now, those places
are much more favoured than Herberton and
that district, both in the way of postal communi-
cation and in every other way. The receipts
from the telegraph office at Herberton are £982
4s. 9d., and the total expenditure £620 4s. 8d.,
leaving a clear profit of £362 0s. 1d. The tele-
graph line is extended seven or eight miles past
Herberton, to Watsonville, and that extension
is run at a slight loss of £10 or £12. Taking
Herberton and Watsonville together, the total
income is £1,218 1s. 7d., and the total expenditure
£860 16s. 7d., leaving a clear profit of £352 5s, per
annum. Taking that into consideration, and the
fact that the increased fifteen miles of line would
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only cost at the highest rate £50 a mile, I cer-
tainly think that some attention should be paid
to their prayer. While I am on my feet I will
take advantage of the motion to refer to another
matter. Last night was spent on the discussion
of & road or railway from Warwick to 3t. George.
I am now going to spend a few minutes on the
discussion of certain roadsin my district, for
which very small assistance is required. In
1883-4 a sum of £10,000 was voted for excepted
roads under the Divisional Boards Act Amend-
ment Act. Of that sum £800 was granted to
the Daintree Divisional Board, £1,000 to the
Hann Divisional Board, £750 to the Douglas
Divisional Board, £750 to the Tinaroo Divisional
Board, £500 to the Woothakata Divisional Board,
and £525 to the Johnstone Divisional Board,
making a total of £4,325. The surplus of £5,675
was allowed to lapse. The following year—in
1884-5—the sum of £10,000 was again voted for
the same purpose. The Tinaroco Divisional
Board received £1,500, and the Hann Divisional
Board £500; an amount of £497 4s. 10d. was
granted for Irvinebank and Emu Creek, opening
a road for Messrs. Young, McCulloch, Sten-
house, and Mineral Lands Commissioner Mow-
bray ; and £346 2s. 1d. for the road from Talle-
budgera to the border ; the total amount being
£2,843 6s. 11d., so that of the £10,000 voted that
year the sum of £7,156 13s. 1d. lapsed. In 1885-6
only £6,000 was voted for excepted roads. Of
this sum the Tinaroo Divisional Board spent
£1,300; the Woothakata Divisional Board,
£500; the Daintree Divisional Board, £1,000;
the Cairns Divisional Board, £500; the Hann
Divisional Board, £500 ; the Douglas Divisional
Board, £500 ; the Einasleigh Divisional Board,
£500; the Johnstone Divisional Board, £300;
and the sum of £692 12s. 8d. was granted for the
road from Tallebudgera to the border; total,
£5,992 12s. 8d. The balance which lapsed from
that vote was £7 7s. 4d. For 1886-7 the same
reduced amount of £6,000 was voted, and it was
expended in the following manner :—Einasleigh
Divisional Board, £300; Woothakata Divisional
Board, £665 ; Tinaroo Divisional Board, £1,000;
Cairns Divisional Board, £1,000; Daintree Divi-
sional Board, £500; Douglas Divisional Board,
£800; Nerang Divisional Board, £500; Hann
Divisional Board, £500 ; and Port Douglas Divi-
sional Board, £500. The balance remaining from
that vote was £35. Those sums have never been
sufficient. Before half the year has elapsed the
whole of this amount has been expended. The
roads are in a disgraceful state, and communica-
tion is consequently very seriously interrupted,
and when applications are made to the Minister
for further grants the invariable reply is, *“ You
must wait until the next sum is voted, as we
have expended the whole of the amount placed on
the Estimates.” I think, then, that with the
experience of previous years to guide us, it is
desirable that a larger sum should be placed
on the Estimates. But what do we find
this year? The amount is reduced from
£6,000 to £2,000. Although the number of
excepted roads is larger and increased expendi-
ture is required to keep them in order on
account of the increased traffic, the vote is
reduced to £2,000. I cousider that very false
economy, and that instead of reducing the vote,
and in consequence retarding the development
of those districts in which the roads are situated,
the amount should have been increased by the
Government. Two or three days ago I received
a petition from certain miners on the Russell
River, but as it is not in order I could not present
it to the House. As it refers to a very important
matter, I will briefly indicate what the peti-
tioners desire in order that the matter may be
brought under the notice of the Minister for
Mines. Hon, members will no doubt recollect

Motion for Adjournment. [ASSEMBLY.] Motion for Adjournment.

that some years ago a road was discovered to
the Russell River. But a new discovery was
made some time ago by Mr, Christie Palmerston,
and large numbers of miners are now working on
the field and obtaining payable gold. There are
some Chinese who claim to be entitled to work
on that field on the ground that they discovered
it, but that claim is disputed by white men, who
say that there are records in the Mines Office to
show that they reported the discovery first. The
warden of the field was instructed to report on
the matter and he has recommended that the
Chinamen should have a certain area of
ground allotted to them, but the miners object
to that area as being too large, and as
interfering with their interests. They are
dissatisfied with the line drawn by Warden
Mowbray, as it surrenders a large area of auri-
ferous country unprospected on which gold can be
got, but owing to there being no mode of transit
there is a great difficulty in prospecting it. They
would like the Chinese restricted in the way
indicated on a map which has been sent to the
Department of Mines, I hope the Government
will take notice of this matter, and that their
action will be very different from the action of
the last Liberal Government with respect to
Chinese on the Palmer. In consequence of
their action there are a number of gullies lying
desolate on that field at the present moment
which would be worked by white men had they
not heen prevented in the first instance by the
invasion of myriads of Chinese. If it is proved
that the Chinese have made a discovery on the
Russell River, the Government can easily com-
ply with the Act, yet prevent the Chinese inter-
fering with the whites, by limiting the area of the
goldfield discovered by the Chinese to, say, 100
yards square.

Mr. NELSON said: Mr. Speaker,—I would
like to take advantage of this motion to draw the
attention of the Government to the very little
use we get from the telegraph stations compared
with what we might receive, in respect of floods,
a subject which was referred to by the leader of
the Opposition and also by the hon. member
for Darling Downs, Mr. Allan. Of course, if
we support a telegraph office it is a public
institution, and we naturally expect that
the operators, even if they do not receive
instructions from the head of the department,
should in cases of danger to life and valuable
property by flood send notice to the stations
lower down the river when a flood has occurred
in the higher part. But my experience has been
that they invariably fail to do that. I have
had occasion, living near Dalby a considerable
distance down the Condamine, to watch the
state of the river at Warwick., The communica-
tion from Warwick to Dalbiy is very easy, but on
no occasion yethave I ever found thatthe operator
at Warwick has sent notice to the office at Dalby
when a flood has happened at Warwick. Many
times I have gone to the operator at Dalby and
asked him whether there was any probabiilty of
a flood in the Condamine, and he has always told
me that he had not received any notice about it,
but he would find out for meif such was the
case. On several occasions it has happened that
there has been no intimation given at Dalby
that there was aflood at Warwick, T will give an
illustration. Hon. members will recollect that
last January there was a heavy flood in Brisbane
and at Warwick. On that occasion there was
next to no rain in the Dalby district—pro-
bably not more than an inch. X happened
to be in DBrisbane at the time, and when I
heard of the flood I sent a special telegram to
Dalby with instructions to engage messengers
to convey the news to stations likely to be
affected by the flood. Had I not done that it is
probable that the first intimation of the flood
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received at Dalby would be the account in the
Courier, which arrived there at 2 o’clock on the
Monday. It seems to me a very simple thing
that operators should get positive instructions
that whenever a case of that sort occurred they
should at once send word to the stations further
down the river, warning them of the danger, so
that people might take the necessary steps to
protect their lives and property.,

Mr. JESSOP said : Mr. Speaker,—I can bear
out all that has been said by the hon. member
for Northern Downs. In the flood of 1873, when
there were several feet of water on Rosalie
Plains, extending over forty or fifty miles, a
great amount of stock might have been saved if
timely information had been given, as might
easily have been done, of the rise of the flood.
The same thing, as the hon, member had pointed
out, occurred during the flood of January last.
It frequently rains heavily at Warwick, and we
get our floods at Dalby from there. The same
thing happens at many places throughout the
colony, and the rise of a flood is known near the
heads of creeks and rivers long before the flood
reaches the plains. If the Government were to
give instructions to both the Telegraph Depart-
ment and the Police Department to send messen-
gers ahead to give information as to the approach
of floods it would often effect a great saving in
stock, and, perhaps, in loss of life, I trust the
Government will take this suggestion into their
consideration, and issue instructions of the kind
I mention.

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN said : Mr.
Speaker,—T wish to say something in relation to
one of the matters brought forward by the hon.
member for Cook, Mr. Hamilton. I refer to the
Chinese on the Russell River. T think that if
that petition, although informal, had been sent
to the Minister for Works instead of to the
House, it would have met with a good deal of
consideration, for I feel quite certain that that
hon. gentleman is in no way inclined to favour
Chinese at the expense of his own countrymen.
Here is a petition signed by over sixty European
miners., I presume the signatures are bond
Jfide; they have the appearance of it, anyhow, I
should like to hear from the Minister for Works,
after I sit down, what action he is likely to take
in this matter., There has been a good deal
of confusion, as hon. members are aware, on
the Clermont Gold Field, between Xuropean
miners and Chinese miners, the latter clalin-
ing %o have a right to mine on that field
owing to some mistake having been made in
the proclamation of the extension of the field;
which proclamation, I believe, has been taken
to mean, not the proclamation of a new field, or
extension, but as applying to an old field, and
giving the Chinese miners a right to mine upon
it. Hon. members are aware that we have a law
which prevents Chinese from mining upon any
field until three years after it has been pro-
claimed. In this particular case it seems they
have claimed the right to mine on an old goldfield.
A similar question, it seems, has arisen on the
Russell River. 1 should like to know by what
right the Chinese are there at all. If a China-
man discovers a new goldfield—and I do not
know whether he has a right even to discover a
new goldfield—if he discovers, by accident or
industry, a new goldfield, does that give every
other Chinaman in the country a right to go
there and mine? If he has any legal right
at all it is to the reward of his discovery
by having a large area of ground given to him
for his discovery, usually called a prospecting
claim. It is a question which the Attorney-
General might be able to give some information
about, It is a very serious matter—these conflicts
ariging between Chinese and Huropeanu miners.
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The European miner does not like to break the
law. At the same time he has a horror and dis-
gust of Chinamen, and would like to keep them
as far from him as possible. But if they are
allowed to come in contact like this, we
may have a repetition of what has occurred in
other colonies—at Lambing Flat, in New South
Wales, and on the Buckland, in Victoria.
None of us would like to see a repetition of those
things in Queensland. The conduct of the miners
there, I must say, was not very exemplary, but
they were irritated by the very cause which is at
work here—Dby the Chinese going to the places
where they were drawing their drinking water
and fouling those places, which it is well known
Chinamen do to a very large extent. The ques-
tion I wish to ask the Attorney-General is, if a
Chinaman finds a deposit of gold, and that place
is proclaimed a goldtield, does that give all other
Chinese a right to go there and mine at any time
before that field has been three years open? I
think it should not, unless we have a statute
giving them that right ; and we have no such
stabute that I can call to mind at present. The
only thing in fair justice which a Chinaman or
party of Chinese who find a gold deposit are
entitled to is a prospecting claim, and no more,
and they are entitled to be protected in that.
At the same time every other Chinaman should
be kept off that field until it has been for three
years a proclaimed goldfield.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS (Hon. C. B.
Dutton) said : Mr, Speaker,—With reference to
the Clermont (Gold Field I do not think any mis-
take was made in the proclamation, It was
proclaimed a new goldfield, and Chinamen
would of course be excluded. But as hon,
members know, the field covers a very large
area of ground, is very patchy, and a great
deal of it is very poor indeed. I believe
there are 250 or 300 Chinamen fossick-
ing about on the field in different places,
I instructed the police magistrate, who is also
warden there, to try and remove these China-
men, and he then advised me that it would be
necessary to send a strong force to enable him to
doso. I asked him for more information and
told him to find out where these men were mining
or fossicking, and ascertain what they were
doing. The result of his investigation, as far as
I could learn, was that the Chinamen were
making about 15s. a week at it, and that the
white miners on the field were making on
an average about £1 a week. Under those
circumstances I thought it scarcely worth
while to insist upon removing those men,
seeing that they were working on ground
that no white man would attempt to work. The
difficulty arose in this way: In one or two
instances Chinamen would go off by themselves
and succeed in getting what some of the white
miners believed to be a pocket of gold ; that of
course aroused the cupidity or envy of the white
miners, and they at once required the warden to
put the white miners in possession of that patch
of ground which the Chinamen, alter a good deal
of trouble, had fossicked out for themselves. I
did not think, under the circumstances, it would be
worth the time and trouble that would be necessary
toshift those Chinamen from the field. The matter
remains at present in abeyance. Of course, they
are there illegally, but it will require force to put
them away—more force than the warden has at
his command. With regard to the Russell Gold
Field, Mr. Mowbray is warden there, and he has
reported, I think, twice upon the matter. In
the first instance, the field was a very large area,
and at the time it was first discovered I believe
some Chinamen discovered the first workings on
the lower part of the field. Christie Palmer-
ston’s discovery is higher up the Russell
River, where the white miners are at werk, T
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instructed Mr, Mowbray to examine the field
carefully snd ascertain the kind of ground
the Chinamen were working on. His report
was that they were working on very poor ground,
and far removed from where the white men were
working, and he thought under the circum-
stances that it would be as well to leave them on
that patch of eround on the Lower Russell that
they had found for themselves. and which was of
little value, too little for anv white man to work.
Onwhat information hearrived at that conclusion,
I do not know, excent it was his own observaticn.
T assume that probably one or two white miners
who have a particular dislike to Chinamen, as I
suppose all miners have, ent up a petition—T have
received a petition myself—that these Chinamen
should he removed entirely from the field. But
it would be rather rough on those Chinamen,
especially if they are working ou ground not
likelv to be of any value to white men, that
they should all be put out of it except the dis-
coverers, T suppose they. at all events, are
entitled to a certain area for having discovered
it. But that does not, as I understand the
law, give the right fo their countrymen to
come in and take up additional ground near
them. It does not extend bevond the men
who discovered the ground. From all the
information I received it anpeared to me that
it was scarcely worth while to take all the
trouble that would be necessary to put those
men off the lower end of the field. They are
far removed from the white men, the ground is
too poor to be worked by white men, and under
the circumstances I have done nothing more,
except to request Mr. Mowbray to report further
upon the subject, and as soon as T get his report
T shall act upon it.  As to the Chinamen, if T
find they are occupying valvable ground and
keeping out white men, they will have to go and
work somewhere else. I do not know how it is
to be done except we send up a force to do it.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said: T may
be allowed to say a word or two by the indulgence
of the House. I should like to say that the fact
of trying to draw a line and prorlaiming it—71 do
not mean a proclamation in the Gazetie, but pro-
claiming it through the warden ag an area where
Chinamen will be allowed to remain and work—
is a very dangerous precedent to establish, espe-
cially as it ‘s very likely to lead the Chinese to
think that they have a right to go there, and it
might lead to trouble if the Government found
themselves necessitated to put them away.

The MINTISTER FOR WORKS said : Mr.
Speaker,—There is no line confining the China-
men to any particular ground. Thev have
naturally collected about one particular spot
which their countrymen had found. Of cousse,
we could not set apart a new goldfield for
Chinamen to work on. They are illegally there,
and are only tolerated as holders of miners’
rights.

Mr. PALMER said: Mr. Speaker,—I have
here a letter containing some information on this
subject, and as I take an interest in it I shall
read portions of it. Tt is from Christie Palmer-
ston, who says with regard to Geraldton :—

“The heaviest gold and the largest quantities have
been obtained below the confluence of Cane Creek with
the Russell, the Chinese having sent away about
2,000 oz. since May last, and large parcels still eontinue
to roll in.”

hTh:’ MINISTER FOR WORKS : Where is
that?

Mr, HAMILTON : On the field we are speak-
ing of ; the ground the Chinese are working.
The letter is dated September 29.

Mr. PALMER : The letter goes on +—

“The loss of the mainriver is not the worstof it, for
you will notice from what I have written on your map
that & Une at Cane Creek will be giving the ‘Chinks’a
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feavhil area of verv auriferous mountains hetween the
Upper Russell and Tohustone Rivers, only partially pros-
pected by myself, and which may turn out a rich reefing
field.”

T noticed that the Minister for Works said just
now that only the poorer parts of the field were
allowed to the Chinese, but it is very hard to
sav what are the poorer parts of a goldfield
until it has been tested.

“Tf T econtinue to prosesute myv researches. and the
houndary remains as it is, the Chinese will have per-
fect right, on any discoverv being made, to swarm me
orany other prospectors like so many land leeches.”

That is a letter that has been received by the
hon. member for Cook, My, Hamilton, with
regard to the goldfield on the Russell River.

Mr. CHUBB said: Mr. Speaker,—I think
the point the hon. member for Townsville wants
to make plain is this: The law on the subject
will be found in the Goldfields Act Amendment
Act of 1878, vol, ii. of the Statutes, page 12555
and if T read this Act aright, if a Chinaman dis-
covers a goldfield, that goldfield may be occupied
by all the other Chinamen in the colony. The
hon. gentleman in charge of the Works Depart-
ment shakes his head, but let him read the Act,
The Act states :— '

“Tyerv goldfield shall be deemed to he a new goldfield
or the purposes of this Aet until after the lapse of three
vears from the date of the first proclamation of such
gnldfield.”

It further says :—

“No miner’s right issued to any Asiatic or African
alien shall, either when orviginally issued or by way of
subsequent endorsement, be made available for any new
eoldfield.”

Now, as the law stands, it is plain enough that
Chinamen cannot go on new goldfields ; but the
Act goes on to say :—

« But this seetion shall not apply to any miner’s right

issued underthe Goldfields Act Amendment Act of 1877, or
to any Asiatic or African alien who shall desire to have
the miner’s right issued to or held by him made avail-
able for auy new goldfield of which the first discoverer
and reporter or one of the first discoverers and reporters
was an Asiatic or African alien.”
So that, if a Chinaman discovers a new goldfield,
or a Chinaman and white man together discover
it, the right to that Chinamanandhis countrymen
to go upon that field is clear. If a Chinaman
discovers a goldfield Chinese can occupy it, but
if a white man discovers it the Chinamen cannot
enter upon it for three years. Ifthat is the law,
and T believe it is the law, then the sooner it is
amended the better, because hon. members must
understand that a goldfield is by the Act
described as ¢ Crown lands proclaimed, or which
may be proclaimed as a goldfield.” There is no
doubt that if a Chinaman in fossicking avound
discovers a new goldfield, he and his countrymen
may oceupy it.

Question put and negatived.

FORMAL MOTION,

The following formal motion was agreed to :—

By Mr. HAMILTON—

That there be laid on the table of the House, all
correspondence between the Under Secretary for the
Post Office and the late postmaster at Cooktowi, Mr.
Allen, relating to his applieation for leave of absence
or removal from Cooktown to some other portion of the
colony.

PETITION.

Mr. HAMILTON presented a petition from
residents of Cooktown in relation to _the late
postmaster at Cooktown, and praying that relief
might be granted to his family. He moved that
it be read.

Question put and passed, and petition read by
the Clerk.

On the motion of Mr. HAMILTON, the
petition was received.
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ACTING CHAIRMAN OF COMMITTEES.

The PREMIER said : Mr. Speaker,—Before
the House passes to the Orders of the Day I
wish to move that during the absence of Mr.
Traser, the Chairman of Committees, Mr. Aland
do act as Chairman of Committees of the whole
House. Mr. Fraser is, I believe, affected by the
protracted sitting of yesterday, and may be
absent from the House during part of the
evening.

The Hown. J. M. MACROSSAN said: Mr.
Speaker,—I wish to know whether this motion
has been made with the consent of the hon.
member for Toowoomba ?

The PREMIER: Of course.

The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN: If so, it
looks like a little coup d’état on the part of the
Premier. The hon. gentleman at the head of the
Government knows very well that the hon, mem-
ber for Toowoomba is antagonistic to the railway
which is under discussion, and which has probably
caused Mr. Fraser’s indisposition and unfitted
him to occupy the chair. Now, I think that the
hon. member for Toowoomba would be acting
more in accordance with true principles if he
refused to act as Chairman ; and the leader of the
Government would be acting more in accordance
with the principles which have always been
carried out in this House if he asked some other
member on his own side to take the chair—a
member who is favourable to the passing of this
Thane’s Creek railway. There are many members
on that side who are able to act during Mr.
Fraser’s absence as well as the hon. member for
Toowoomba—gentlemnen who do not wish to
speak, and who may have been asked not to
speak, on the question. It seems that some of
them have agreed not to speak and to be silent
for the future. I certainly object to this motion
for the two reasons that I have given, and I
think Mr. Aland should refuse to take the chair,
and the Committee should not ask him to do it.

Mr., ALAND said: Mr. Speaker,— Perhaps
I ought to say a word or two about this. I
should be very sorry that hon. gentlemen opposite
should think for one moment that after acting
in concert with them for the last twenty-four
hours I am now untrue to the position I took
up. The hon, member for North Brisbane,
Mr. W. Brookes, spoke to me and asked me
whether as a matter of kindness to Mr. Fraser
I would, if it were found necessary, occupy the
chair for an hour or two to relieve that gentle-
man ; and I consented to do so.

Mr. MOREHEAD : He gets £500 a year for
his services in the chair.

My, ALAND : So he does; but I know well
that the hon. gentleman does not wish to see an
old man like Mr. Fraser suffer.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : That is not
the question. The question is your taking his
place.

Mr. MOREHEAD: Yes; you, who are op-
posed to this motion, taking his place.

Mr. ALAND: All T cansay is that if hon. gen-
tlemen on the other side think I am, in offering
to take the chair, acting in any way in a manner
untrue to the position I have taken up upon the
railway question, I will not take the chair for
Mr, Fraser. But I can assure those gentlemen
and the House that I consented to take the chair
out of a pure feeling of kindness to the Chairman
of Committees. The leader of the Opposition
knows that once or twice within the last twelve
or fourteen hours I expressed a feeling of sym-
pathy with Mr. Fraser in his position.

Mr, NORTON said : Mr. Speaker,—I accept
at once the statement of the hon. member, and
I never for a moment thought he was acting
unfairly towards members on this side of the
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House ; but the hon, member may possibly have
overlooked the meaning of the motion which
has been put to the House. It is not that
the hon. member should take the chair for an
hour or two, or even for a day or two, but
““during the absence of the Chairman of Com-
mittees.” Possibly from physical exhaustion the
Chairman of Committees may not be able to
take the chair during the remainder of the weel ;
and if the hon. gentleman consents to the motion
as submitted to the House, he will have to take
the chair as long as the Chairman is absent.
The motion reminds me of the notices which
used to be set up in gardens—‘‘Spring guns
and man -traps” here. There is a good deal
of the man-trap about the motion. Advantage
is taken of the kindly disposition of the hon.
member for Toowoomba to put him in a position
the effect of which he does not fully realise. I
am one of those who believs that if the Premier
gets an opportunity to take a slant he will take it.
Thopethe hon. member willfully consider theeffect
of accepting the motion now before the House.

Mr. SCOTT said: Mr, Speaker, I am very
glad to hear what fell from the hon. member for
Toowoomiba, Mr, Aland, as I can understand
how the thing came about. A similar thing
happened to myself in this House some years
ago. The Chairman of Committees met with
some accident, and 1 was asked to take his place
and consented to do so, and thought no more
about it until T was taxed with having done so
by some members on my own side. There was
nothing particular going on then, and I took the
position for a time and heard nothing more. I
did not calculate that by doing what I did I took
away a member fromn the strength of my own
side of the House.

The PREMIER said: Mr. Speaker,—Sus-
picion haunts the guilty mind, I suppose. It
certainly did not occur to me, in proposing Mr.
Aland’s name, that members on the other side
would see a veil of wickedness in the proposal.
Mr., Aland has acted for Mr. Fraser on previous
occasions. The hon. member for North Brisbane,
Mr. Brookes, suggested to me that he might act
again for him. I do not suppose the division is
likely to take place while Mr. Aland is in the
chair, as Mr. ¥raser, I know, intends to be here
this evening. The point was not worth taking
and reflects no credit upon the gentleman who
raised it. TUnder the circumstances, however,
I will withdraw the name of Mr. Aland from
the motion and substitute that of Mr. Foote.

Question—That during the temporary absence
of the Chairman of Committees, Mr. Foote do
act as Chairman of Cominittees—put.

Mr. MOREHEAD said: Mr. Speaker,—I
shall object to this motion, though I do not think
any member of the House would more worthily
fill the position than the hon. member for Bun-
danba.  But we are not fighting with gloves
now. The Government have shown us that, and
by their action, and the position they have com-
pelled the Opposition to take up, Mr. Fraser
has been incapacitated from fulfilling the duties
forwhich he receivesaconsiderablesalary. Under
the circumstances I do not see why we should be
asked tofillthe vacancy. Doesthe Premier intend
to go on in this way and put all his supporters one
after the other, in the chair in order to force this
railway down our throats? The only reason
given why Mr. Fraser is not in his place as
Chairman, is that he is physically incapable of
being there,

The PREMIER : I said he wished to be absent
from the House for a few hours.

Mr, MOREHEAD : Does the hon. member
meant to pretend that that conveys any other
meaning than the language I used conveyed to the
House ? :



1398 Aeting Chairmun
Does it not mean that the hon, gentleman, know-
ing the Chairman of Committees is worn out,
intends to put in a gentleman who will worry
along for & time, and then put Mr. ¥raser back?
Now, are we to understand that this is to be a
fight to the bitter end ? Is this Thane’s Creek
railway to be rammed down our throats? If so,
I can say it is the intention of this side of the
House, and a section of the ether side, not to
submit to it. I do trust that the Government
will now give up the fight. I might call it a
half-hearted fight, because I am sure the hon.
Minister for Works had no stomach for the fight.
It was only under the whip and spur of the hon.
member for Townsville that he was made to jump
atall, and he did jump, and took the opportunity
of attacking agentleman who if he had been in the
Housewould have warmed his skin in a way that
would rather have astonished him. Of course it
was within the province of the Minister for
Works to attack in the way he did the late
Minister for Lands. Of course he was perfectly
justified according to his lights in ransacking
every pigeon-hole in the Lands Office to find
something upon which he could attack an
absent man who could not defend himself,
I think this amateur detective, the Min-
ister for Works, who has been in office
for four years—this official scavenger, who
appears to gave gone round to try and rake
up everything which might take away from the
character of those who preceded him—has not
been so successful as he hoped to be when he
went in on the backs of men, some of whom he
has since got rid of. I believe one of his chief
friends, one of his assistants in the construction
of the celebrated yellow pamphlet, got a billet—

The PREMIKR : Mr. Speaker,—I rise to
order. This is not relevant to the question.

Mr, MOREHEAD : The hon. member, with
hig feeble mind, ought to know that he cannot
tell until the end of my argument whether it is
relevant or not to the contention I intend to set
up. In the meantime I am dealing with the
hon. the Minister for Works. If, at the end, my
argument proves worthless, it will then be time
for the hon. the Premier to say it is irrelevant. I
object to be put down by the bully of the Bar,
and I will not be put down. This is not a court
of law; this is a tribunal where T stand as a
representative of the people, and I will express
my opinion irrespective of the bully of the Bar,
Now, sir, I will go on o deal with the hon. the
Minister for Works.

The PREMIER : Mr, Speaker,—I ask your
ruling on the point I raised. I insist that the
debate be kept within due limits. I have moved
an ordinary motionwith reference to the conduct
of the business of the House, and I submit that
the hon. member must be kept within proper
limits.

The SPEAKER: The question before the
House is a motion for the appointment of Mr.
Foote as acting Chairman of Committees during
the temporary absence of the Chairman of Com-
mittees, Mr. Fraser. I understood the hon,
member, when he rose, to say he objected to that
appointment, and he must confine himself to
his reasons for objecting to it.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Of course I shall give my
reason for objecting to the appointment. I hope
to show that the conduct of the Ministry has
been such as to make us look with very grave
apprehension on any recommendation they may
make, and I am dealing now with one of the
Ministry.

The SPEAKER: The hon, member will
pardon me if T say that his arguments must have
some relevancy to the motion,
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Mr. MOREHEAD : If Tam only given time
1 shall show that my remarks are relevant, Ido
not think it is right that I should be cornered—
“cribbed, cabined, and confined ”—by the leader
of the Government. We are dealing with the
important question of the Chairmanship of Com-
mittess, which, I assume, is to be temporarily
vacated by the hon. member for South Brisbane,
Mr. Fraser. We are dealing with a matter
so important that the Government consider it
necessary to sit up all night over it—at least,
certain members of them do; others retire to
bed. I have a perfect right to discuss the
merits of the individual members of the Ministry
who recommend a substitute for a gentleman
who was elected by the votes of this House, Mr.
Fraser was elected by the votes of this House,
and it may be admitted that he has done his duty
fairly well, but we have now not only to discuss
the merits of the hon. member for Bundanba,
which I admit are very great indeed, but also to
get from the Government some reason why that
particular gentleman should be selected as acting
Chairman of Committees. This opens up a very
wide field, and I am perfectly right in pointing
out the action taken by the Minister for Works
in certain appointments he has made.

The PREMIER : Mr. Speaker,—I must ask
your ruling distinetly on this matter. The hon.
gentleman has now said that he proposes, on a
motion for the appointment of a gentleman to take
the chair in committee for this evening, to canvass
the conduct of the Minister for Works in the ad-
ministrationof the Lands Department. I ask your
ruling distinctly, whether that is or isnot in order.

Mr., SPEAKER: On a motion for the
appointment of an Acting Chairman of Com-
mittees, the hon. member cannot canvass
the conduct of any Minister, unless it can be
shown that the conduct of the Minister has
some relevancy to the cbjection the hon. member
raises to the appointment of the gentleman pro-
posed as Acting Chairman of Committees.

Mr. MOREHEAD said : Mr, Speaker,—That
is exactly what I intend to doif I can. I say
that a recommendation of the present Ministry
is not one that should be accepted by the House,
and I was proceeding to show that, by calling
attention to different appointments made by
different Ministries,

The PREMIER said: Mr. Speaker,—The
hon. member has now said what he propouses to
do. I asked for a distinct ruling as to whether
it is in ovder for the hon. member, on a motion
for a purely formal appointment, to make an
attack on individual Ministers with regard to
the conduct of their departments. I ask your
ruling, sir, as to whether his remarks are rele-
vant or not ; I submit that the hon. member has
shown that they cannot be relevant to the ques-
tion before the House.

The SPEAKER : The hon. member is not in
order. He must confine himself to the question
before the House.

Mr. MOREHEAD said: Mr. Speaker,—I
bow to your decision at once, and I proceed now
o discuss therelative competency of the gentleman
who is proposed to be put into this position with
the competency of other gentlemen who have been
introduced by the present Government. I think
there can be no objection to that, I am now
going to refer to the appointment of Commis-
sioner Paul.

The PREMIER said: Mr. Speaker,—I must
ask you to keep the hon. member in order. Itis
your duty to do so.

The SPEAKER : It is not competent for the
hon. member to discuss the conduct of Com-
missioner Paul on a motion for the appointment
of an acting Chairman of Committees,



Acting Chairman

Mr, MOREHEAD : Very well, sir, I will
abandon Commissioner Paul, and will now
come to Mr. Grolden. DMr. Paul being ruled out
of order, I will now deal with the appointment
of Mr, Golden. As I said before, I look with
very grave suspicion, with more than suspi-
cion, upon any recomnmendation made by the
present Government. Having regard to the
position that Mr. Golden obtained as an
incompetent inspector of rabbits, which he was
never able to find, and afterwards as Crown
Lands Dividing Commissioner, I think that in
every case it must be admitted, even by his
bosom friend the Minister for Works, that he
was a failure. At the same time it is very
expensive having such appointments made by
the Government,

The PREMIER said : Mr. Speaker,~—I must
ask you to maintain your ruling. You have held
that this sort of discussion is out of order, and I
ask you to keep the hon. member within the
limits laid down by you.

The SPEAKER: The hon. member must
certainly confine himself to the question before
the House. The question is that Mr. Foote be
appointed to act as Chairman of Committees.

Mr. MOREHEAD said : Mr, Speaker,—That
is what I intend to confine myself to, but I think
you will admit, sir, that a great amount of lati-
tude is allowed in any other parliament in
dealing with a matter of this sort. We can only
arrive at the fitness or unfitness of the gentle-
man nominated for this office by parity of
reasoning. I have no fault to find with the
hon, member personally who has been nominated
for the position. I have always held him to bea
highly respectable man, but I intended to show
that, judging by the appointmnents and recom-
mendations made by the Government up to the
present time, he will probably be placing himself
in a position where he may not be considered a
thoroughly respectable man, I would still like
to point out to the House that any appointments
or srecommendations made by the present Gov-
ernment ought to be taken with considerable
caution. I think that even the Premier, who
appears to wish to be the bully of this House, as
he is the bully of the Bar, if he will allow me to
say so, must admit that there are many appoint-
ments which have been inade by the present
Government that I might possibly unfavourably
comment upon. I suppose, sir, that after your
ruling Mr, Golden must go.  Therefore we will
go now to Mr. Rule. Probably I shall be ruled
out of order in referring to his appointment.

The PREMIER said : Mr. Speaker,—I sub-
mit that it is not necessary for me to continually
call your attention to your ruling that the hon.
member is out of order.

The SPEAKER: I may remind the hon.
member for Balonne of the practice of the
House of Commons in a case of this kind.
The Chancellor of the Exchequer, as leader of
the House, names the gentleman he desires to take
the chair, when the elected Chairman of Com-
mittees is unable from illness or other cause to
take the chair, and if there is any difference of
opinion as to the fitness of the gentleman named,
the discussion takes place on that alone. The
hon, member must confine himself to the question
before the House, which is that Mr. Foote be
appointed Acting Chairman of Committees
during the temporary absence from illness of the
Chairman of Committees, Mr. Fraser.

Mr. MOREHEAD said : Mr. Speaker,—I at
oncebow toyour decision, and had the Premierhad
sufficient competence and knowledge to have in-
formed theHouse that what you have nowstated is
thepractice, I'would have accepted it before. After
your ruling I am convinced that I was in error.

[3 NovemBEr.]

of Committees. 1399
Now, to come to the question as to the appoint-
ment of & Chairman of Committees, I think it is
unfortunate that a member should have been
selected for this particular post who holds very
pronounced opinions on the subject of the vie
recte, and who has also expressed very pro-
nounced views on a previous occasion, which
did not altogether agree with the views
of the Government. I do not know why
he is selected. I admit at once that his integ-
rity is undoubted; that his intelligence is as
great as that of any member of this House—1I
admit that willingly and frankly ; but I do not
think it is fair, either to the hon. member him-
self or to the House, that a gentleman who is a
strong and pronounced partisan on this particu-
lar railway should be put in the position of
Chairman of Committees. I should much have
preferred to have seen the senior member for
Maryborough put in that position, as he is a
gentleman who has held high office in this
colony, and was at one time a colleague of
the Prewmier, and I believe he is well up in
all the forms of the House. The hon. mem-
ber for Bundanba will know at once that I
would not say one word that would in any
way offend him, for I have a great respect
for hiin personally ; but I think that under the
cirenmstances, seeing that he holds very strong
opinions on this railway, for very good and
sufficient reasons no doubt, he should not be
appointed Chairman of Committees. I do not
for one moment accuse the hon. member of
being actuated by improper motives, but I hold
that it would be very much better if a colourless
politician—1 do not use the term in an offensive
sense—such as the senior member for Mary-
borough, who has not expressed any strong
opinions on this subject, were appointed to the
position. He is well acquainted with the forms
of the House, and would, I am sure, perform the
duties as ably as any member in the House.
It would be better, therefore, if the Government
were to put someone into the chair who has
the character and the political qualifieations I
have described. The hon. member for Bundanba,
perhaps, has no desire to sit in the chair. It can-
not be a position of any great comfort to anyone.
Holding these views, I must object to the hon,
member for Bundanba being appointed Acting
Chairman of Committees ; and that hon, member
will quite understand that I do so without any
personal feeling in the matter at all.

Mr. LUMLEY HILL said : Mr. Speaker,—I
think there is no occasion for the Government to
appoint a temporary Chairman now. If the
Chairman of Committees is unable to attend at
present, let us adjourn the business until he is
able. I donotthinktheauthority you quoted from
just now provides for a case of this kind, which
is of a special character; and if the Government
are allowed to appoint a fresh Chairman of Com-
mittees time after time it will give an unfair
advantage as against those hon. members who
are determined, from thoroughly conscientious
motives, to make use of all the forms of the
House to oppose this railway, which they look
upon as a thoroughly worthless political railway.
We have a Chairman who is paid to occupy
the chair permanently, and when he is unable
to perform his duties, let him adjourn the Com-
mittee. If we adjourn now, until the Chairman
is able to take his seat, we shall all get a rest,
and we shall be able to go on cheerfully all the
rest of the night. I object to see anyone pub
into the chair except the proper Chairman, It
will be time enough to do that when the Chair-
man is really ill from natural causes. But he is
not ill. He is merely tired, just as a good many
more members of the House are; and he will
be perfectly recovered, and ready for business
again, I have no doubt, by 7 o’clock, after which
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T expect we shall spend a very pleasant evening.
In the meantime, I do not see why I should not ]
be allowed to go away until about 7 o’clock, when §
the real business will begin. |

The PREMIER : You will not be missed if
you go.

Mr., LUMLEY HILL: No doubt the hon.
gentleman would be very glad to get rid of me
on this occasion. But I have not the slightest
intention of going away, and I do not suppose 1
shall be away much to-night or to-morrow night.
But I enter my protest on principle against the
appointment of a temporary Chairman, who
may be replaced from time to time as often as
one happens to get tired out ; and I hope other
hon, members will see the matter in the same
light that I do. Then we shall be able to go on
without making any invidious remarks about
the qualifications of the Chairman who may be
proposed from time to time.

The SPEAKER : The course proposed by the
Premier is that adopted on all occasions both
in the House of Commons and in Colonial
Parliaments. If it should happen that the |
Chairman of Committees is unable to take the
chair in committes when the Speaker is moved
out of the chair, it is the usual practice for the
leader of the House to move for the appoint-
ment of an acting chairman forthe day. I would
remind hon. members that in the House of
Commons, where the sittings in committee last
sometimes for forty-eight hours, this course is
adopted. One chairman is appointed for six
hours. Then the House resumes, the Speaker
takes the chair, and another member is appointed
for six hours. As soon as that term has expired
the House again resumes, the Speaker takes the
chair, and another chairman is appointed for
another six hours; and so on. That is the
ordinary practice. Whenever the Chairman is
taken ill, or from any other cause is unable to
attend to his duties, it is usual for the leader of
&he House to appoint an acting chairman for the

ay.

The HoN. J. M. MACROSSAN said: Mr.
Speaker,—I do not think there is any doubt as
to the practice of the House of Commons in
appointing a deputy Speaker or a deputy Chair-
man of Committees. The objection, if any, to
the hon. member for Bundanba as temporary
Chairman is, that hon. members on this side of
the House, who have entered their protest in
an energetic way against the passing of a
certain railway, are of opinion that the
battle should be fought out under one Chair-
man. But that, T fear, cannot be done. T
do not suppose there is any mortal man who
could stand the strain for twenty-four hours
after twenty-four hours, as it seems the Govern-
ment intend to make it, and as we are ‘quite
prepared to do. Even if they go on for a week
they may make up their minds that we shall sit
that week also. I am not going to discuss the
fitness of the hon. member for Bundanba for the
chair. I believe he is perfectly qualified to fill
the position, and to fill it very solidly too, But
I will say this, that I am very glad the hon.
member for Toowoomba has seen fit to withdraw
his name as a candidate for the chair. I
am quite certain that hon, gentleman was
carried away by his feelings on behalf of
Mr. Fraser, who is tired out by the long sitting
since yesterday. But the hon. member should
consider those with whom he is acting, as well as
Mr. Fraser, sceing that there are s0 many hon.
members on that side of the House who are
perfectly qualified to take the chair. The hon.
member for Maryborough, Mr. Sheridan, has
been mentioned by the leader of the Opposition
as a gentleman who could fill the chair very
well, "I believe he would fill it as well as any

member of the House, and, having once occupied
the position of a Minister of the Crown, he would
add dignity to the position of the chair—
although not, perhaps, weight, as in the case of
the hon. member for Bundanba. Then there
is the hon. member for Darling Downs; he
might be put into the chair. I am surprised
that the Premier did not select him for the
chair, He is a formidable antagonist to hon.
members on this side of the House, and it would
have pleased us much better if he had been
appointed to the position. Next to those two
hon. gentlemen I would prefer Mr, Foote, for the
very same reason that he is a formidable antago-
nist to hon. members on this side of the House
on the particular question we are now debating.
I would much rather see him in the chair—
where he would be comparatively harmless
—than sitting where he is, giving directions
to the anti-stonswallers during the temporary
absence, from fatigue, of the Governmens.
T do not believe conscientiously that there is a
single man on that side of the House, with the
exception of the hon. member for Enoggera and
the gentleman at the head of the Government,
who understands what stonewalling really means,
and how it can be carried on, except Mr. Foote,
T prefer seeing him in the chair, where he will
be, as I say, comparatively harmless. He will
have no intricate questions or points of order %o
decide, which he cannot decide for himself, We
shall have no divisions, except ordinary divi-
sions upon moving the Chairman out of
the chair, and that he report progress or
no progress, and ask for leave to sit again.
Those will be the only kind of motions that will
be put. Therefore, I say, Mr. Foote will be
harmless, but he might be very harmful where
he is sitting now. I know very well that he is
not at all satisfied with the tactics of the
Government in carrying on this anti-stone-
walling, and that if the matter was left in his
hands, 1f it were possible to break down the
stonewall and have done with i, that gentle-
men would do it. That, I am happy- to
say, I can see no possibility of yet. The
wall is still very sound, very solid, and
appears, so far, to be impregnable, so that it
is a matter of indifference to this side of the
House who takes the chair, whether Mr. Fraser,
Mr. Foote, or Mr. Sheridan. I agree entirely
with Mr, Foote’s nomination, and hope to see
him in the chair at 7 o’clock.
Question put and passed.

MARYBOROUGH AND URANGAN RAIL-
WAY ACT AMENDMENT BILL.
SrcoxD READING.

Mr, FOXTON said : Mr. Speaker,—As hon,
members are aware, this is a Bill introduced for
the purpose of extending the time which the
Vernon Coal and Land Company, Limited,
were given to construct the Urangan railway as
rovided by the Maryborough and Urangan
Railway Act of 1884. As time is short, Mr.
Speaker, I shall make my remarks as brief as
possible, but I think it is perhaps as well that I
should recall to the memories of hon. members
some of the principal provisions of that Act. It
will be remembered that authority was given to
the company by the Act to make a railway from
the town of Maryborough, or rather from a point
on the Maryborough-Burrum line, seven miles
out of Maryborough, to Urangan. A mineral
loop line, as it was called, from another point on
the Maryborough-Burrum line, some few miles
further on crossed the Urangan railway, forming
a triangle. I believe there are lithographs on
the table which will assist hon. members in
understanding the position of affairs. That
line from the Seven-mile peg, as it is called, to



Maryborough and Urangan

Urangan and the mineral loop-line are designated
in the Act “ the main line of railway.” There is
also provision for making certain other short
lines, such as a line to a place called Polson,
and a duplication of the line from the school
reserve in Kent street, Maryborough, to the
junction of the Maryborough-Gympie, and
Maryborough-Burrum lines, at a place called
Croydon Junction, about two miles from Mary-
borough. The company were at liberty to select
1,000 acres within the Burrum coal reserve, in one
block or in blocks of 964 and 40 acres, at the
price of 30s. per acre. It was also required that
before the company began the construction of
the line, they should prove to the satisfaction of
the Minister—

“ That they have a capital subscribed in good faith,
and by responsible persons, equal to £1,00) for every
mile of railway as shown on the deposited plans, and a
paid-up capital actually available for the purposes of
the construction of the said railway of not less than
one-tenth of such subscribed capital.”’

If Irememberrightly, thelength of thelineisabout
twenty-fourmiles, including the mineralloop-line;
so that hon. members will see that a considerable
amount of capital will have to be subscribed
before the company will be allowed to commence
operations. By the 6th section they were also
required to deposit in the Treasury the sum of
£2,000 within six months from the passing of the
Act, as security for the due completion of the
line within three years, the time allowed for
the construction of it from the passing of the
Act, which occurred on the 23rd December,
1884. Consequently the time for the com-
pletion of the railway would, under the Act,
expire on the 23rd December next., The object
of the Bill is to give the company further time
to complete their arrangements. It was hinted
when the Bill was introduced that it would be
necessary that very goodreasons should be shown
why this company had not undertaken the work
in accordance with the provisions of the Act and
carried the line to completion. The select com-
mittee took that view, and intimated directly to
both Mr. Hart, of the firm of Hart and Flower,
who appeared for the promoters of the Bill,
and also to Mr, Rawlins, the representative of
the company, that it would be necessary for
them to show very conclusively that there were
good reasons why this railway had not been
undertaken within such time as would enable
them to complete it within the period specified.
If hon. members would look at the evidence——

Mr. MOREHEAD: We will read the evi-
dence.

My, FOXTON : On reading the evidence hon.
members will find that the reasons why the
work was not undertaken earlier were that by
one of the clauses of the Act power was given
to the Government to purchase this line at any
time after the expiration of five years. Certain
gentlemen who are mentioned in the evidence,
who undertook to find the necessary capital,
and who were known residents of Melbourne,
objected to this term of five years, and
required ten. Ten years had been substituted
by the select committee, but an amendment
was moved in Committee of the whole House
.reducing the term again to five years. Those
capitalists then withdrew from the company.
In their place other capitalists were induced to
come forward and have failed since, and another
gentleman who was relied upon, Dr. Power,
afterwards died. The consequence was that the
company was partially left without any share-
holders who were able to carry the works through.
That was the position of affairs when Mr.
Rawlins went to England and saw there the
representatives of a company well known to
hon. members, the Australasian Transcontinental
Railway Syndicate, who entered into an agree-
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ment with Mr. Rawlins to take up 47,000 shares
out of the 50,000 of which the Vernon Coal and
Railway Company consisted, and the other 3,000
were to be devoted towards liquidating certain
claims against the company in the colony—
claims of creditors or shareholders. All the share-
holders then existing were to take fully paid-up
shares, and the creditors were to do the same.
Messrs. Hart and Flower were appointed agents
for the Transcontinental Railway Syndicate to
act for them in the colony, and their instruc-
tions are given here at length and dated 14th
July, 1887, from Mr., Wm. Harvey, the secre-
tary to the syndicate. An extraordinary meet-
ing was afterwards held of the Vernon Coal and
Railway Company by whom the contract was
adopted, and Hart and Flower cabled to the
syndicate in London on the 17th September last,
as follows :—

«“Creditors and shareholders settled with under clause
1 of agreement.

“Shares issued to Rawlins under clause 2, butlease not
assigned for want of name of nominee.

“Rawlins has complied with clause 3.

“The Government have agreed to support an extension,
but will not take the matter up themselves.

““We require names of nominees of Syndicate as Direc-
tors of Vernon Company.

“ Resolutions by next post.”’

Mr, Hart informed the committee that those
resolutions had been forwarded, and I have since
seen a letter which was received after the delibe-
rations of the committee had ended, acknow-
ledging their receipt. It will therefore be seen
that the matter has now been taken up in Eng-
land by men who have command of a considerable
amount of capital. I do not know the line; I
know nothing about the matter; I know pro-
bably as little about either the syndicate or the
undertaking itself as any member of the House ;
but it does seem to me that it would be a great
advantage if this line could be constructed in the
way proposed, because it will be the means of
introducing a considerable amount of capital
into the colony. The Committee thought, with
mem;bers who had spoken on a previous occasion
when the matter was before the House, that a
further guarantee should be given for the due
completion of the line, and they therefore intro-
duced into the Bill a proviso to this effect :—

“Provided that the company shall, before the com~
mencement of the railway or entering into possession
of the lands to be selected under the third section of
the principal Aet, and within four months from the
passing of this Aet, deposit in the colonial Treasury a
further sum of three thousand pounds, which said sum,
together with the money so previously deposited as
aforesaid, shall he detained by the Treasurer as security
for the due completion of the main line of railway, and
upon such completion shall, together with the moneys
so previously deposited as aforesaid, be returned to the
company.”

The sum of £2,000 which had been previously
paid into the Treasury has since increased to
about £2,600, and the committee decided upon
a further sum of £3,000, hecause that, together
with the £2,600, will give a sum equal to 5 per
cent. on the total amount of capital required to
construct the line of railway and the wharves,
Five per cent, would be the amount of deposit
required by the Government from a contractor
undertaking the construction of the line in the
ordinary way. A new clause has also been
introduced, providing for the forfeiture of the
whole amount of the two deposits with accrued
interest if the railway be not completed within
four years, but that an extra six months may
be granted, provided the Minister is satisfied that
proper expedition has been used and substantial
progress made. I do not know anythingaboutrail-
way-making, but my own impression is that the
construction of twenty-fivemilesof railwayand an
extensive wharf-pier will take more than twelve
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months. However, Mr. Rawlins is confident
that the railway can be constructed in that time,
though possibly it might be necessary to ask for
the extra six months for the complétion of the
wharf, I do not know that I have anything
more to say. I have endeavoured to be as brief
as possible while making the matter as clear
as I can to hon. members. The evidence is very
short, and it appears to me to be all that we
require as protecting the interests of the country
in this matter. I beg to move that the Bill be
now read a second time.

The PREMIER said: Mr. Speaker,—The
effect of this proposal would beto extend the time
allowed by Parliament to the company for the
construction of the line, by twelve months, and
to increase the company’s deposit to £5,000,
which is to be forfeited if they do not
make the line within the time allowed.
It appears to me to be a very substantial
security at any rate. The company deposit
£5,000, and forfeit that deposit if they do not
make the line, and, under the circumstances, I
am disposed to support the Bill. It appears
from the evidence that the company has
materially changed in constitution since it
was first formed. The names of shareholders
who have disappeated are .replaced by the
names of shareholders in an English syndicate
well known by name. I do not see that
that makes any difference, as, if they make
this line to develop the country and make
a wharf also, they may as well be allowed
to do it as anybody else. I should be very
averse to extending the time allowed by the
original Act wunless a good guarantee was
given that the railway was really intended
to be made. Three years have nearly passed
since the authority was given to construct
the line, and very little has been done. As the
company give a guarantee now of £5,000, and
fully understand this time that it will certainly
be forfeited if they do not make the line, I
think the House will not be doing anything
dangerous if they consent to the extension of
time asked for.

Mr. MOREHEAD said: Mr. Speaker,—I
cannot agree altogether with what has fallen
from the Premier. No case has been made out
for the extension of time by the hon. member
who moved the second reading of the Bill. It
is an extremely interesting Bill, and in more
ways than one. It shows, amongst other things,
how the Premier, by going over to the other side
of the world, alters his opinion, not only with
reference to individuals, but also with reference
to combinations of individuals. The 17th ques-
tion in the evidence and the answer to it should,
I think, be read by every member of this House.
It is as follows :—

‘“And were you not alsoa director? I was also a
director, up to that time, In November, last year, 1
received & letter from the secretary of the company,
Mr. McMicking, informing me formally that Dr. Power
was dead, and that the two Wilsons, who were directors
of the company, had become insolvent; and saymg that
their efforts to obtain ecapital to carry out the scheme
had proved futile in England, and asking me if I would
come to Brishane and see if I could give the necessary
evidence to be sent to England to enable somebody to
float a company there. I came to Brishane at once, got
all the papers together, and went home to England by
the ‘Merkara’ in January. I arrivedin Bngland in
March. I brought this matter under the notice of
the ‘ Australian Transcontinental Railway Syndicate.’”
I think we have heard that name before. Indeed,
the Premier himself brought that name very
prominently before the House on more than one
occasion, and on every occasion he spoke of it in
terms of opprobrium and contempt.

‘“ After a meeting of the directors of that syndicate, T
waited on Sir Samuel Griffith, who was then in London
on some other business connected with Queensland. At
that meeting the Maryborough and Urangan Railway
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was to have been discussed. The sceretary, oh the 9th
of May, wrote me & letter, saying that a meeting had
been arranged with Sir Samuel Griffith, at 8t Stephen’s
Club, Westminster, for Wednesday, 11th of May, and he
said after the interview with Siv Samuel, the Urangan
line would be discussed then.’

It is very interesting to find that the Premier is
a member of the most counservative club in
London, and yet he poses here as a greab
Liberal.

The PREMIER : T am not a member of the
most conservative club in London,

Mr. MOREHEAD : Then the hon. member
must have got in on the card of membership of
some other club, or else the evidence of this
gentleman is untruthful. I assume from this
evidence that there was a meeting.

The PREMIER: Yes, I met some gentlemen
on the 11th May at St. Stephen’s Club, by
appointment. I wasnot a memnber of the club,
and, in fact, declined the honour of membership
which was offered me, because they made it a
condition that I should be a Conservative, and
should sign a paper to that effect.

Mr. MOREHEAD: I know what the hon.
gentleman was asked to sign, but as he disagreed
with Gladstone they might have let him in on
that ground. The witness went on to say :—

‘I understood subsequently from the secretary and
fron Sir Samuel Grifiith that nothing was said about this
proposal at the meeting. I went to Euston Station on
the 19th of May, to see Sir Samuel Griffith leave by the
train, and I then told him that the Australian Trans-
continental Railway Syndicate were considering the
matter of taking up the Vernon Coal and Railway Com-
pauny’s shares and carrying out the scheme; and I
asked, if I got them to do so, would he give me any hope
of getting his support for an extension of time neces-
sary to complete the line. He said, ‘Yes; if you show
bona fides, I will give you my support;’ and he men-
tioned the matter, introducing me to Sir James Garrick
as coming under his approval,”’

The Premier approved of it, and introduced the
gentleman to Sir James Garrick.

“The subsequent transactions with the Australian
Transcontinental Railway Syndicate led to an agree-
ment being drawn up between myselfand the syndicate,
dated 24th June of this year, whereby I agreed to get
the Vernon Coal and Railway Company to sell to the
Anstralian Transcontinental Railway Syndicate 47,000
shares. By that agreement I propose to getthe capital
to carry out the scheme whose main features are laid
down in this paper. [Docuinent put in and marked—
Appendir 4.1 I include valuations made by My. Barry,
Mr. Keate Hall, and myself. The amount of money I
want is £134,000.”

Now we will go a little further and refer to ques-
tion 23, and it is there stated :—

“ Who are the members of the board? Lord Denbigh

and William Dunean, directors. The members of the
Australian Transcontinental Railway Syndicate, who
will be members of the Vernon Coal and Railway Com-
pany in London, are—the Hon. Major-General Feilding,
Lord Denbigh, William Meets, of Jardine, Matheson,
and Co., the Duke of Manchestor, Ilenry Campbell,
William Braby, ironmaster, and William Duncan,
banker. That agreement was made subject to confirma-
tioa by the company, « meeting of which was held on
the 31st of August last, at which it was resolved
decidedly to carry out the terms of the ag eement.
[Resolutions, ete., read—A ppendic D.]
I would like to know fromn the Premier whether
these are the gentlemen who formed the direc-
torate, at any rate, of the Transcontinental
Railway Syndicate, who were so discredited by
him on a previous occasion.

The PREMIER : When?

Mr. MOREHEAD : And who are to be so
favourably treated by him on the present occa-
sion.

The PREMIER : You are mixing up two
things.

Mr. MOREHEAD : The hon. gentleman has
mixed up too much with those highly decorated
people at home, and it has altered the views he
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held before to a considerable extent. Now, I
wonder that the hon. gentleman has allowed his
views to be changed in this way. Some years
ago there was no term of opprobrium that he
did not apply to Major-General IFeilding and
others on this transcontinental syndicate.

The PREMTER: You are drawing on your
imagination again.

Mr. MOREHEAD : No. I have a powerful
imagination, and when I wish to draw on it it is
there, but just now I am stating what is known
to every member of this House. There was no
name too bad for the hon. gentleman to apply
to those connected with this transcontinental
syndicate.

The PREMIER : T should like you to quote
one instance.

Mr. MOREHEAD : The hon, gentleman can
find one for himself ; the volumes are in front of
him. Now, he has proved that those men are
not what he described thewm, by allowing an
agreement to be entered into with them when
he was at the other side of the world. By the
action of the Premier himself some years ago,
the word ‘“syndicate” has become a word of
opprobrium. It has a legitimate and honourable
meaning, but now it is used as a byword. Even
the hon. the Colonial Secretary the other
night, in a little sly poke at me, alluded to
some syndicates I was in, as if it were a term
of opprobrium and contempt. Now, we see
how the whirligig of time brings in his re-
venges. We find the Premier seeing no objec-
tion to this Bill, although it is the outcome of
negotiations that took place between himself and,
inferentially, the Agent-General, and this much
abused transcontinental syndicate. I would ask
the hon. gentleman if he is going to stop this
transcontinental business here, oris he prepared,
assuming they make a fresh offer to the Govern-
ment, to consider a proposition from them
for a railway across the continent? Would he
consider a proposition from them for the
construction of these much-debated lines that
are before us now? It would be a good thing
if the hon. gentleman and the hon, member who
introduced this Bill were to go home at their
own expense and negotiate with this syndicate
for the construction of the railways to Thane’s
Creek and to South Brisbane. Now, sir, the
Premier occupies with regard to this Bill a
peculiar position. He is bound to advocate the
passage of this measure because he has been
taken into consultation by those people at home
and has agreed to what they proposed.

The PREMIER : The evidence shows that
that was not so.

Mr. MOREHEAD: The evidence shows it
was $0.

The PREMIER : Nothing wassaid about this
proposal.

Mr. MOREHEAD : He passed them on to
Sir James Garrick.

The PREMIER : Not at all.
Mr. MOREHEAD : Well, I will read it

again:—

“‘Yes, if you show bong fides I will give you my
support’ ; and he mentioned the matter, introducing
me to Sir James Garrick as coming wunder his
approval.”’

Mr. McMASTER : That was Rawlins; he
passed Rawlins on.

Mr, MOREHEAD : Passed anything you like
on; call him Smith if you like, or.call him
McMaster ; he passed the agent on tothe Agent-
General. I say there was a moral endorsement
Ipade by the Premier at home in favour of this
ine.
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The PREMIER: If it is a bond fide line I
said T would support it.

Mr, MOREHEAD: Thatis all I contended
for. In anything the Premier does, or says, or
writes, he always has a saving clause, and bone
Jides in this case was to be the saving clause.
That does not interfere with the fact that the
Premier leant towards doing business with a
syndicate which years ago in this House he
utterly and remorselessly condemned, and
the records of the House prove that. Now,
sir, I shall not support the second reading
of this Bill. I think it is surrounded by too
many elements of suspicion and doubt. When
the Premier suddenly changes his opinion with
regard to an individual we cannot be too careful ;
and this Bill would never have been brought
into the House had it not been for the moral
endorsementof the Premier. The hon. member for
(arnarvon said nothing in favour of the Bill, and
T do not think he could say anything in favour of
it. He said we had the evidence before us, which
is true, and that we had the Bill before us, which
is also true, but he never gave any sufficient
reason why the second reading of this Bill should
pass. It is now 6 o’clock, and I have said my
say.

At 7 o’clock,

The SPEAKER sald : In accordance with the
Sessional Order, the private business under dis-
cussion when the House adjourned at 6 o’clock
now stands adjourned till after the discussion of
Government business.

MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT.

THE MiNiNe INDUSTRY.—SOUTH BRISBANE
Rarnway CONTRACTOR.

Mr, HAMILTON said: Mr. Speaker,—I beg
to move that this House do now adjourn. I do
so for the purpose of bringing before the Govern-
ment the persistently unfair manner in which
the mining industry is treated by this Govern-
ment, and especially in the northern part of the
colony; and I shall commence by reading the
opinion of a paper which is a strong supporter
of the Government,

Mr, LUMLEY HILL said: Mr, Speaker,—
I beg to call your attention to the state of the
House,

Quorum formed.

Mr, HAMILTON : Atthe same time it does
not sacrifice its principles to party purposes, but
honestly and straightforwardly advocates what
it considers right, though in doing so it may not be
advocating the policy of the party it generally
supports. The paper I refer to is the Cooktoun
Independent, which, in referring to this matter
in a leading article, states as follows :—

“We cannot shut our eyes to the stern facts revealed
by statistics, which prove that, since their accession to
power, the Liberal Ministry have not only been illiberal,
but unjust, in their treatment of the most important
industry in the colony. The amounts voted for pros-
peeting and opening new goldfields have been as fol-
lows :—1879-80, £2,000; 1880-1, £689 15s. 7d.; 1881-2,
£720 18s. 1d. ; 1882-3, £110; total, £3,520 13s. 8d., all of
which was expended by the Mcllwraith Ministry—
namely, £3,220 15s.2d. on the Northern,and £299 18s. 6d.
on the Southern fields. In 1883-4 the vote was £2,000,
and for 1884-5, £5,000, of which £558 1s. 11d. were
expended in the North, and £108 12s. in the South;
£6,333 6s. 1d. being allowed to lapse. Of the £10,000
voted in 1885-6 to assist deep sinking only £1,150 wers
expended up to 1st May, 1886, and not one penny of itin
the North, The actual expenditure, however,up to August
was—Gympie, £713 10s.; Cawarral. £122 ; and Moriuish,
£231. Then there are £1,264 6s. 44. for material and
tubing, &ec., connected with diamond drills, which
should never have been charged to this vote. The total
amount expended is therefore £3,330 16s. 4d., leaving
an unexpended balance of £6,669 3s. 8d. from the vote of
last year. This year there ave £5,000 on the Estimates
for the same purpose, and which will probably result
like the previous vote, in a third bheing spent in the
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south and two-thirds lapsing. The amounts expended
for diamond drill material were of no benefit to the
North, as both drills were purchased by a sum of
£3,000 on the Supplementary Istimnates of 1685-6, and
both hiave been kept in the South, one at Dalby boring
for enal on Crown lands, ard the other at Maryhorough
boring for coal ont private property, at a ruinous loss
to the country, for the benefit of wealthy speculators,
The foregoing figures reveal the facts that of the modest
votes passed by the Mcellwraith Ministry, every peany
was expended, searcely & tenth being expended in the
South, while of the £17,000 for which the Griffith
Ministry have got credit for passing to assist mining,
only the paltry snm of £558 1s. 11d. has been spent in
the North, while the sum of £13,063 3s. has virtually
lapsed or remains unexpended. Of £3520 13s. 8d.,
voted by the Mcllwraith Ministry from 1879 to 1883,
£3,220 15s. 8d. were expended in the North for the
legitimate assistance of mining, while out of £17,000
voted by the Liberal Ministry, the North has got only
£558 1s. 11d. It was not the fault of Northern
residents and miners that advantage was not taken
of the provision for which thcy had been waiting
anxiously for three years, but because the Minister
for Works declarcd emphatically that not one pound
could be advanced to assist deep sinking, until the
shafts were first selected and recommended by Mr.
Jack. To render the survey and sclection impossible,
one man who would be allowed to do such work was
eoolly taken away from his important and imperative
duties, and turned into a hydraulic enginesr in the West.
Mining, and espeecially Northern mining, has thus been
fooled by the sight on paper of what could never have
been intended to be expended forits benefit, The Minis-
ter for Works had repeated applications from this dis-
triet, and the answer was always that My, Jack would be
sent when disengaged, but he was kept until the vote
lapsed, without a penny of it being spent in the North.
No matter what their professions may be,and no matter
how stoutly we may have defended their other measures,
we mustindependently denounce Ministerial treatment
of Northern mining, as glaringly unjust. Sir Samuel
Griffith must know that mining has done more for the
progress and settlement of this colony and its southern
neighbonrs, than any other industry; aud here we have
had in this district, the premier field waiting for the
promised assistance to develop its second and more rer-
manent life. If the Paliner reefs had been situated in Vie-~
toria they would have been supporting a population of
20,000 years ago. Everyresident in this district believed
in the promises of a Ministry whom they supported, but
they must now confess that their most vital interests
have been disregarded by at least one Minister. There
is yet time to remedy ‘somecthing of the past,’ by
promptly sending Mr. Jack or a qualified substitute to
the Pahner, in order that its just share of the vote tor
deeD sinking may be speedily and practically applied to
the development of the richest reefing distriet in Aus-
tralia.””

That article was written in September, 1886,
There was yet time for the Goverment to do
something, but they did not take advantage of
their opportunity, and nothing has been done.
The article correctly states that at about the
time it was written there remained out of
the £10,000 voted for prospecting purposes
during the financial year of 1885-6 an unex-
pended balance of £6,669, That was subse-
quently during the same year disposed of
in the following manner :—August 26, freight
and diamond drills, £47 6s. 4d.; September
2, diamond drill, &c., £336 6s. 6d. ; Septem-
ber 9, diamond drill, £932 0s. 7d.; Sep-
tember 23, freight and diamond drill, &£5
1s. 11d.; September 30, tin-mining company,
Stanthorpe, £16 19s 1d.: total, £1837 3s. 11d.
Deduct this expenditure of £1,337 3s. 11d. from
the unexpended balance of £6,669, and a balance
of £5,331 19s. 9d. remains. This sum was not
allowed to lapse, but it was carried forward, so
that when the vote in 1886-7 of £5,000 for loans
in aid of deep sinking was passed, there was also
the balance of £5,831 19s, 9d. from the vote of
the previous year available—altogether £10,331
19s. 9d. That sum has<been expended in the
following manner :—1886.—September 3, Stan-
thorpe tin mines, £1319s. ; September 3, diamond
drills, £6 19s. 3d.; September 11, fuel for
diamond drill at Wide Bay, £7 16s.; October
14, Great Monkland, Gympie, £170 10s.;
October 20, diamond drill, 10s, ; November 6,
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Gympie, £225; November 6, Stanthorpe, £5;
November 17, Stanthorpe, £47 6s, 11d. ; Decem-
ber 9, Great Monkland, Gympie, £202 10s.;
December 9, P. C., Norton Diggings, £48;
December 17, Welcome Reef, Morinish, £238.
1887: January 7, Commission to Mr, Palmer,
superintending construction of drills at Mel-
bourne, £200; January 28, Norton Diggings,
£62; February 18, Gympie Great Monkland,
£225 ; March 4, Stanthorpe, £47 13s. 9d.; May
12, Great Monkland, Gympile, £187 10s.; May
12, London Gold Mining Company, Gympie,
£20 3 June 28, Advance Reef, Norton Diggings,
£16; June 30, Hit or Miss, Crocodile Creek,
£322 5 July 8, Great Monkland, Gympie, £285;
July 8, Prospecting Association, Bowen, £60;
July 22, diamonds for diamond drill at Mount
Morgan, £113 15s.; August 12, white lead for
drill, 12s, 8d.; September 29, Great Monk-
land, Gympie, £262 10s.: total, £2,767 12s, 7d.
The unexpended balance of £7,564 7s. 2d. lapsed.
Of the whole amount expended the sum of £60
only was spent in the North. When the subject
came beforethe House last year great objection was
tuken to the fact that large sums of money were
placed on the Estimates by the Government
for prospecting purposes, and that they were
allowed to lapse at the end of the year or were
carried forward on the Iistimates to the follow-
ing year. The Government in this way treated
the mining industry very unfairly, and of the
small amount expended an exceptionally small
sum was spent in the North, as I have shown
by the figures which I have read to the House.
Out of £10,331 19s. 9d., only £2,767 12s. 7d. has
been spent in the whole colony, and out of that
£2,767 12s. 7d. only £60 has been spent in the
northern portion of Queensland, It seems a
farce to put large sums of money on the Hsti-
mates for that purpose and not spend them. It
must also be remembered that when the imposi-
tion of a tax on machinery was proposed, one
argument used in favour of it was that the Gov-
ernment would put an equally large sum on the
Estimates for prospecting purposes. Buttheyhave
not put on an equally large sum, because £14,000
was realised last year from the machinery tax,
while only £10,300 was put on the HEstimates
for prospecting purposes, of which, as I have
said, only £60 was spent last year in Northern
Queensland, and only £2,700 in the entire colony.
And, at the same time, the Government are
reducing the paltry vote to one-third-—namely,
£2,000 a year—which has hitherto been spent
in the North on excepted roads to develop the
mines; in fact, the mining interests are Dbeing
attacked in every possible way by the present
Government. DMy object in moving the adjourn-
ment is to have these facts placed on record, to
enable the miners to see how their inferests are
being neglected by the present Government.

Mr. CAMPBELL said : Mr. Speaker,—I will
take advantage of the motion to bring a matter
under the notice of the Minister for Works,
Some four years ago the Government of the day
—TI think it was the late Government—took over
from the South Brisbane Railway contractor
his work, and, at the same t$ime, all the
material and plant on ithe works, having taken
an inventory of them. When the work was
completed there was something like £1,150 due
to the contractor, which was paid. He has
made application on several occasions for a list
of the plant that was taken from him. The Engi-
neer promised it from time to time, and when I
called upon the Engineer-in-Chief, he also pro-
mised me thathewould havealistofitmade outand
handed over. Mr. Wockner came to Brisbane to
get the list, but for some reason they declined to
give it to him. They told him he could go and
take the plant he could find there. He found
some of it and took it away. But a very large
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portion of it was missing. Tt is a very hard
thing when a contractor’s plant has been taken
away from him in that way, and when, after all,
there was a certain sum of money coming to him,
that the Government will not consent to return
the plant which they took awav from him. T
specially ask the Minister for Works to inquire
into this matter, because it is no use either Mr,
‘Wockner or myself applying to the Engineer for
justice.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS said: Mr.
Speaker,—1 will make the necessary inquiries, so
;-ais to give the hon. member the information he

esires,

Question—That the House donowadjourn—put
and negatived,

WARWICK TO THANES CREEK
RAILWAY.

On this Order of the Day being read, the House
went into committee for the consideration of the
following resolutions :—

1. That the House approves of the plan. seetion, and
book of reference of the proposed railway from Warwick
to Thane’s Creck. in length 24 miles 57 chains 50 links,
a5 laid upon the table of the House on the 23rd day of
September, 1837,

2. That the plan. section, and hook of vreference be
forwarded to the Legislative Council, for their approval,
by message in the usual form.

Mr. BLACK said they had the honour to see
the Chairman (Mr. Foote) in the chair for the
first, but not, he hoped, the last time. But he
should like to have a little information from the
Premier as to how he had been placed in that
position. They had hitherto been accustomed to
see & gentleman in the chair who had filled it
worthily and with credit, and who was, elevated
to that position by a vote of the House at the
commencement of Parliament. He wished
to know from the Premier what was the
mode of procedure usually adopted in cases
where, owing to a lengthened sitting, the
Chairman might be considered entitled to
that rest which other hon. members could take
when they felt a little weary. It struck him
that in a case of that kind, when a substitute
had to be appointed, a vote of the House should
be taken upen it. He was not in any way
deprecating the hon. member’s presence in the
chair, because he knew it would be filled ably
and impartially. He simply wanted a little
information as to the mode of procedure by
which he had been moved to occupy that
honourable position.

The PREMTER said that if the hon, member
had been in his place in the afternoon, when the
Chairman was ordered to take the chair for the
day in the absence of Mr. Fraser, he would kave
had no need to ask the question ; as he would
have heard the Speaker point out that the prac-
tice of the Imperial Parliament was when in
consequence of illness the Chairman of Com-
mittees was unable to take his seat, and it was
necessary to appoint someone to fill his place for
the day, for the leader of the House to name a
member of the House whom he desired to take the
chair, and he was thereupon appointed by the
House. If it was donebefore the House resolved
itself into committee, it was done by motion, and
disposed of at once. If it was done in conse-
quence of a protracted sitting, and the Chairman
being unable to remain any longer in the chair,
the Speaker resumed the chair, and the motion
was made. That was the practice; and that
was the practice that had been followed that
afternoon, which the hon. member would have
seen if he had been present. He (the Premier)
moved that, in the absence of Mr. Fraser, the
hon. member who then occupied the chair
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should act as Chairman. He wished before he
sat down to do what he did not very often do,
that was to refer to a statement in the Press.
He saw in a paper published that evening a
paragraph stating —

«The following are the new Standing Orders which

it is generally believed in the Assembly the Premier
will atternpt to apply to the opposition to the Thane’s
Cresk Railway.” !
Then followed three paragraphs. Now, a thing
might be ““ generally believed ” for many reasons,
but first of all there must be somebody who had
made the statement. He desired to say that who-
ever made that statement, which was “‘generally
believed ’—he did not believe it was ¢ generally
believed,” it must have been an extremely par-
tial belief—whoever had made the statement
from which that inference was drawn was a
deliberate liar. He could use no more proper
language to express it. There was absolutely no
foundation for any snch statement. It was
absolutely false and unfounded. It was a state-
ment made simply for the purpose of damaging
the Government, and had absolutely no foun-
dation whatever. Somebody had made that
statement, he assumed, and had induced some
persons to believe in it. He knew pretty well
the source from which most of the falsehoods
circulated about the Government emanated.
Whetherit came from that particular source bedid
notknow, but wherever thesource it had absolutely
no foundation. The rules laid down there were
simply absurd. The idea of anyone who wanted
to enforce the cldture proposing that there must
be at least forty members in favour of it in a
House of fifty-nine ! The person who framed that
must be a lunatic. Fe had never seen those
rules before, or if he had seen them it must have
been in the Press as relating to what was done in
some other country. FHe protested against such
statements being introduced into any paper. when
there was no foundation for dreaming even that
he ever proposed to do anything of the kind.

Mr. BLACK said he was very glad to have
heard the explanation of the Chief Secretary
as to the mode of procedure by which the Chair-
man had been placed in the chair. He could
excuse the irritability which tho hon. genleman
had shown in consequence of his having had the
audacity to trouble him to give the information
which he had just given. The hon. gentleman,
however, must bear in mind that the fact of his
absence from that Committee last evening was,
perhaps, to a certain extent justifiable. While
he was performing his duty to the country and
his constituency last night, the hon. leader of
the Government deserted his party at a time
when they were most in need of his services
and went quietly home to bed—at least he
assumed that he went to bed. The Chairman,
who was present last night, must have seen the
humiliating and deplorable position in which
the Gtovernment were placed by the absence of
the only member of the party who was at all
able to conduct the affairs of that House or
the country.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : The Govern-
ment were away.

Mr. BLACK said he would accept the sugges-
tion of the hon. member for Townsville, and say
‘‘the Government were away.” They deserted
their post last night, and a few subordinates,
who, with the assistance of the under secretaries
of the departments, did carry out some minor
details in the administration of the affairs of the
country, were all that were left in that Chamber
to represent the Government, when a most
important matter was under discussion. In
connection with the paragraph in the paper to
which the Premier referred, about the proposals,
or supposed intentions, of the Government to
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introduce cléture into that Chamber, he had seen
the article, he thought, in the Zelegraph news-
paper of that night.

The PREMIER : T saw it in the Observer.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Not in the hon. gentle-
man’s own newspaper,

Mr. BLACK said, as they were aware, there
was a good deal of jealousy between the pro-
prietors of rival newspapers, and he had no
doubt that a great deal of the irritation which
the Premier had shown arose from the fact that
a paper, which was a rival of his own, had
obtained information before he thought fit to
give it to his own paper. That was the only
justification, to his mind, of the hon. gentleman
for the very strong language he used in
denouncing somebody — language which he
certainly thought was not parliamentary—call-
ing somebody a liar; and he regretted very
much that the Chairman, on the first occa-
sion of his occupying that chair, had not called
the hon. gentleman to order after using language
in that Chamber which, coming from him, he
could not but describe—to put it mildly—as
extremely disgraceful. The hon. gentleman had
tried to gag that Committee—that was the plain
English of the word ‘‘cléture,” and, he believed.
a much more expressive one. Whether the hon,
gentleman did intend to attempt to gag them of
course he could notsay ; but he had slight reason
tobelieve that he was very nearly doing itonavery
recent occasion ; that he was quite prepared
to do so; and if it had been carried out the
Chairman in particular and his constituency
would have been amongst those who were
likely to be most affected by it. The Chief
Secretary had referred to the impracticability
af the cloture as described in the Observer
that night, He (Mr. Black) thought whoever
wrote that article in the Observer had pro-
bably copied it verbatim from the Xnglish
Act. He thought he was right in saying that
the English Act provided for a majority of forty.
Of course, not being in the Premier’s confidence,
he was unable to say what the number was he
proposed to introduce; but he thought forty
would be a very suitable number, If the hon.
gentleman did attempt to put the gag on the
House, he thought it would be only fair that he
should secure a majority of forty to doit. The
hon. gentleman had rather ridiculed the idea of
forty, and he would ask him what number he
intended to propose, because, if it were a majority
of a smaller number than that, he thought any
attempt to introduce the cldture would beattended
with very great danger to the privileges of that
Chamber and the interests of the country.
However, he would not occupy the time of the
Committee longer, He had no doubt the Gov-
ernment did intend that night to do what they
failed to do so signally last night—that was, to
give some idea of what their intention was in
connection with the special notice of motion
which they had then under discussion. If the
Government did infend to introduce the very
obnoxious principle of the gag, hon. members
would know what to do, and to what extent
to adopt the present proceedings in connection
with that new and aggressive measure to which
the Premier had referred.

The PREMIER : What is that ?

Mr, BLACK: The gag, to which the hon.
member referred when he called attention to the
paragraph in the Observer.

Mr. MACFARLANE said he did not intend
to assist in stonewalling ; he merely rose to say a
few words in reference to the paragraph read by
the Premier. Tts appearance in the Olserver did
not surprise him after the address from the hon.
member for Townsville on the subject at an
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early hour that morning. The hon. member
said there was a whisper all about—in the
library, in the lobbies, and even outside the
precincts of the House—that such a thing as the
cloture was to be enforced, and that he had been
informed that it had been intended to enforce
it in connection with the stonewalling on the
part of the West Moreton members. He (Mr.
Macfarlane) did not believe there was any inten-
tion on the part of the Government to enforce
the cloture, either on the present or on the pre-
vious occasion. The hon. member for Townsville
assumed anewrdle that morning, After speaking
on various matters he informed the Committee
that he had peeped under the cloak of the one-
man Government—he had lifted the cloak—and
seen underneath. The hon. member with his
omniscient eye professed to have been able to
see the thoughts and feelings of the one-man
Government ; and had told hon. members
that there was very little humanity underneath.
He (Mr. Macfarlane) gave the hon. member
credit for always being able to make out a plau-
sible case—the hon. member could sometimes
make white look black, and black look white
- but he thought it his duty to say that any
remarks made in that Chamber in the morning
they need not be surprised to see mentioned in
the afternoon Press of the same day.

Mr, DICKSON said he was not surprised at the
Premier calling attention to the matter, but he
thought the hon, member had saddled the wrong
horse, because the Observer wasby nomeansthe first
to inform hon, members of the intentions of the
Government, FHon., members had heard that
morning, from the hon. member for North Bris-
bane, a speech unprecedented in that Chamber
—a speech which had elicited from him the inter-
jection, ‘“Never hit a man behind his back.”
The hon. member for Townsville thought at
the time that the interjection was directed
at him, but it was uttered in consequence of the
unjustifiable attack made by the hon, member
for North Brisbane on the Premier who was
absent. Though he differed from the Premier
and the Minister for Works, he (Mr. Dickson)
spoke to them face to face and not behind their
backs, and he was surprised that a gentleman
who had thoroughly supported them, had most
obsequiously supported the Premier and the
Government hitherto, should have turned round
on the Premier during his temporary absence
that morning in such an astonishing manner,
That hon. member called the Government a one-
man Government, and pointed out that the
Premier assumed the role of a melodramatic
hero draped in a long robe, under which he
concealed dynamite and other instruments of
destruction.

Mr, W. BROOKES: No!

Mr. DICKSON said the hon. member stated
that underneath that robe were instruments of
destruction, and that there was one instru-
ment of a most nefarious character which he had
not revealed even to his colleagues ; and then he
added—he did the hon. member the justice to
admit that he did not say it was positively
intended, but that he had learned the in-
tention confidentially—that he believed that
the Premier intended to proceed with the
cléture. The hon. member referredto it as having
been formulated on account of the position taken
up by the West Moreton members with regard
to the Redistribution Bill, and said he had no
doubt that it was to be applied to the discussion
on the Thane’s Creek railway., Whatever sus-
picion the Committee might have concerning
the rumour that the cloture was to be
applied to the debate, there was no doubt that
the speech of the hon. member for North Bris-
bane, Mr, Brookes, gave rise to that rumour
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primarily; therefore he did not think the Premier
was right in attributing, to the Opposition at any
rate, that they had been the first to insinuate
that the hon. gentleman intended to proceed in
the manner suggested.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he thought the remarks
made by the hon, member for Enoggera with
regard to the hon. member for North Brisbane
were quite uncalled for,

Mr. DICKSON : Very true, though.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the hon. gentleman
might say they were very true, but he might be
allowed to state his reasons for differing from
him. The hon. member had stated that the hon.
member for North Brisbane stabbed or struck
at the Premier behind his back. Why did he
strike him behind his back? Because the Pre-
mier showed his back—that was the only part
exposed. If the Premier was to be allowed
to run away and bolt on any occasion he
chose, was it to be called stabbing him be-
hind his back because he was not present?
The Premier had as great, or a greater, duty to
perform in that Committee than any other mem-
ber of it, and if they were debarred from com-
menting upon the conduct of that gentleman
because he did not choose to be present, all he
had to do was to continually absent himself, and
then say that anyone who commented upon his
conduct was stabbing him behind his back. The
thing was too absurd to require any further
comment on his part, and he would leave the
hon. gentleman in the hands of a gentleman who
was quite able and willing and competent to deal
with him, and that was the hon. junior member
for North Brisbane, Mr. W. Brookes.

Mr. W. BROOKES said in one of the late
Charles Dickens’s most interesting novels, there
was a character so well drawn that it had excited
the admiration of the whole world. The book he
referred to was “ Martin Chuzzlewit.” It wasa
long time since he had read it ; but heremembered
that one character—a masterly delineation of a
snob and hypocrite—had struck him very forcibly.
That gentleman’s name was Pecksniff, and his
peculiarity was that while professing to know a
great deal he knew very little. He called him-
self a land surveyor, because out of his window
he saw a great extent of country, but he was
also distinguished by another characteristic,
and that was, when he had a simple thing
to say he used a large amount of ver-
bosity and circumlocution. A common phrase
of his was “a really sound national policy.” He
believed in big things. Anything in the direc-
tion of frugality—anything that looked like a
wish to make two ends meet, and not to go into
debt—was enough to call from him the most
pharisaical expressions of deep abhorrence.
Although there was no other character, at all
events in that interesting work of fiction,
approaching him in the piquancy with which it
was sketched, there was one feature of his charac-
ter upon which he ought to say one word, and that
was, that while he presented one side to the world
he was quite another man to those who actually
knew him—just as though he had posed as being
a financier able to teach the Rothschilds, when
the fact of the matter was, he could hardly add
up an ordinary column of figures. Then there
was another feature in his character, and that
was, that when he thought a charge against a
-person of stabbing him behind the back could be
established, he thought his own character for
virtue was based upon a foundation of adamant.
The fact was, that such a reputation as Charles
Dickens described had been established by
the sole and single means of jumping on
other people’s shoulders, There was no per-
sonal merit in the man at all. He was, to
use a concise word, a consummate impostor.
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Now, he (Mr. Brookes) had described acharacter
which he supposed Dickens must have seen the
ideal of, and the question suggested itself, had
Charles Dickens ever visited Queensland? He
did not know that he everhad, but the photograph
which Dickens had drawn of that eminent man
certainly resemblec some people he (Mr. Brookes)
had seen in his life in Queensland very much,
He had seen many Pecksniffs, and he had a
gentlemaninhismind now who really approached
morenearly the picture Charles Dickens drew than
any other person he had ever met in his life. e
should not tell them who it was ; he should keep
that a profound secret. But passing on to the
speech which had been delivered by the ex-
Treasurer—the Committee knew whom he was
talking about now—the secessionist—the man who
left his friends when they most needed him,
and when no other man would have left hiy
friends——

Mr. DICKSON :
opinions ?

Mr. BROOKES : Heappeared tohavehastened
his departure because the Premier’s discovery of
his real quality as a Treasurer seemed to be
nigh at hand. What he was going to say was
that ever since that hon. member’s re-appear-
ance in the House——

Mr. DICKSON : No thanks to you for it.

Mr. BROOKES: Did hon. members now see
any trace of Charles Dickens? Xver since the
hon. member made his re-appearance in the
House, he had been pursuing him (Mr. Brookes)
with such small ability as nature had endowed
him with, because he had called him, at a public
meeting at Red Hill, a ‘“flabby politician.”
That was a sin against the holy financier which
could not be forgiven. Was it egotism for him
to say that every speech the hon. member had
delivered in the House had corroborated his
opinion? It was a particularly true and applic-
able epithet to apply to the hon. member, and
he thought so still, for a more boneless Treasurer
the world had never seen outside of a circus,
Now, the hon. member had stated broadly, with
all the courage of a pot-lion, that he (Mr.
Brookes) had struck the Premier behind his back.
The Premier was a gentleman who, he was sure,
would not believe that, whoever said it, especially
coming from such a decayed authority as the
person who left him in his need. Now, what
were the facts of the case? He (Mr. Brookes)
happened to speak first that morning, but he did
not know that his speech was not reported. He
knew, of course, thatthe Premier was absent,
because he could not see him in his place,
but when he said what he had, he had the
certain and distinet convietion that the Premier
would read it in to-morrow’s Hensard. Now,
he really treated that remark as the idle wind,
because the hon. member who uttered it was
very little else but wind. His verbosity had often
afforded him (Mr. Brookes) an immense amount
of amusement, but his verbosity and circum-
locution seemed to resolve themselves into
nothing but flatulency. And when a member
cast out firebrands in this way, what was it to
him what erroneous assertions he made? It
mattered nothing if he only injured and de-
graded him (Mr., Brookes) in the eyes of the
House and the public.

Mr. DICKSON : I do not want to degrade you
or any other man.

Mr. BROOKES said he did not believe
the hon. gentleman knew what he wanted,
That was his private opinion. The hon. mem-
ber for 'Townsville, the hon. gentleman
went on to say, followed in the same track
that he had been pursuing, by having some-
thing to say about the cloture. So he did,

Not if he had changed his
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and he (Mr. Brookes) was the first to mention the
cloture, and why did he mention it? How did he
get to know of it? Was there any hon. gentle-
man believed that he invented it ?  What object
could he have in view in inventing such a
thing? When he first heard the cléture men-
tioned it was with quite a shudder, to think that
a Queensland House of Assembly, after the first
twenty-five years of its existence, should be so
hard pressed to pass its measures as to find it
necessary to haveeven mention made of the cloture.
But he had very good grounds for believing that
it would be introduced. It was very well known ;
there was no secrecy about the cloture having
been mentioned as a possible political instru-
ment of torture, which was to be applied to the
West Moreton members if they did not
behave themselves and come to heel like
80 many hounds. That was what he had
in view, but, of course, he was not dealing
with the simple fact. He wanted to assert that
it was not his invention, and the hon, member
for Townsville was perfectly right when he said
it was whispered in the lobbies, in the refresh-
ment-room, in the library, and in the corridors,
and, of course, everyone seemed toknow some-
thing about it except the Minister for Works,
who assumed a virtuous innocence and ignorance
which he did not believe he possessed.

The Hov, J. M. MACROSSAN: He ad-
mitted he had seen it.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I said I had
heard of it.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Did the hon. gentleman

ever see the resolutions?
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: No.

Mr. W. BROOKES said he did go so far as to
say that it had been seen in manuseript.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
leader of the Opposition said so.

Mr. W. BROOKES said, should he challenge
the hon. gentleman to say whether he had
heard of the cléture being in manuscript and
had not seen i6? No, he would not complicate
matters. He would confine himself——

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I have
never seen it in manusecript.

Mr. W. BROOKES said he would confine him
self towhat seemed to be at present a perfect bonne
bouche in the ex-Treasurer, and he should not
leave him until he had plucked a few of his tail
feathers out. That hon. member had commenced
his speech by criticising him. He said he had
drawn a very gloomy picture of the financial state
of the colony, but if he (Mr. Brookes) had been
pessimist  the hon. member for Enoggera
at once became optimist, and went on with
a lot of most extraordinary statements. The
hon, gentleman always employed the same
phrase. Theywould find it in every speech he ever
made. “ If he thought the line was not part of
anational policy he would not have supported it.”
What did he mean by a ‘““national policy?”
Was it because the hon. member four years ago
was a consenting party to approving of a loan
of £10,000,000—although of all men in the House,
of all men in the colony, he ought to be the
very one who should be quick to ascertain the
changesin the commercial andfinancial atmosphere
—although he ought to be quick in grasping those
things, as a good barometer indicated the atmos-
pheric changes—yet the hon. member seemed to
think that because acertain policy was announced,
like the laws of the Medes and Persians, it per-
mitted of no change in the year 1387, or three
years after. The hon. gentleman as good as
asserted that anyone who recommended the
principle of rest and be thankful—anyone who
counselled such a thing as that must be wrong.
He was the gentleman who advised now in diffi-
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cult times a headlong policy, going at the same
pace when breakerswere ahead and the leadsman
showed that the water was getting shallower and
shallower. The man who gave that advice had
been for several years Colonial Treasurer, and he
{Mr. Brookes) would ask, did not that show why
they were in theshallows, with such a man to take
the soundings; was it not a wonder that the good
shipQueensland had not beeninthegravellongago?
Then the hon. member wenton to speak as though
he were a leading commercial authority and pre-
sumed to act the ‘“ heavy father,” and gave him
some very solid advice, and to describe him as a
person who hardly knew his right hand from his
left, and was not worth listening to upon a matter
so deeply affecting the country and the com-
mercial welfare of Brisbane. The hon. mem-
ber seemed to think he knew more about
the commercial welfare of Brisbane than he
(Mr. Brookes) did. He was not going to
measure swords with the hon. member as to their
commercial capacity, but if the hon. member
knew more of the subject he would have been more
modest. Those who knew something of a sub-
jeet, and whose advice was most valuable, did
not continually advertise themselves like so
much Holloway's ointment, but they held back.
The hon, member used a most extravagant
and extraordinary argument. Because he disap-
proved of an expenditure which would commit a
colony without a shilling to bless itself with—
that seemed extravagant, but the hon. mem-
ber -for Townsville made it clear that morning
that when they paid their debts at the end of next
June there would be a deficit. The hon. member
foi Enoggera had given expression to some
dreams he had about the immense value of
the border trade that would result from the
construction of the proposed line. It had been
shown that the line passed through an
immense length of bad land, and would cost
at the least £1,100,000; and because he (Mr.
Brookes) could not see the very small amount
of trade which would result from the formation
of that line, in contrast with its enormous
cost—because he did not-see that that would
make the fortunes of the merchants of Bris-
bane, and because he did not see that that
would appreciably and perceptibly increase
the trade of the Brisbane shopkeepers, he was
blind. What was the reason he did not see it?
Because there was actually nothing there to see.
On the best investigation he had been able to
give that subject, he found that all the dreams
about the value of that border trade were
really imaginative; but the actual cost was
certain —at least, £1,100,000. All the evi-
dence led to that.  They had only to look at
the engineer’s estimate, and, as the hon. member
for Townsville had said, the estimate of the engi-
neer might be safely doubled, and they would
then be within the mark. He had not intended to
occupy the time of the Committee that night, nor
did he dream he would have to talke up the time he
had taken, but when he found a gentleman who
had been a Minister of the Crown—a miserable
retreater—a person who backed out from a
situation he never could fill—though that
had made him feel thankful—but even a dog
might run away, but he did not like fo see a
dog run away with his tail between his legs.
There was a time for everything, even to secede
from a Government. It was not an unknown
circumstance for a Minister of the Crown to
differ from his colleagues. Lords Carnarvon and
Derby had done that at home, but how had
they done it? Not by fouling the nest they
were just leaving., They took care to leave their
offices clean, straight, and orderly, and every-
thing was to be found that was required, Was
that the case in the instance before them ?

Mr. DICKSON : Tt was undoubtedly the case,
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Mr. W. BROOKES: Did they not hear
excuses offered by the Premier that whenever he
went to the office he could not find this and
the other? Time would only widen the dis-
coveries, and they would find that the extrava-
gance of the Government—the extravagance
which had been alleged against them—that care-
lessness of the value of money, which was the
very worst kind of carelessness—for a man might
be careless of his own money and injare himself,
but when a man was careless of borrowed money
he was on the way to gaol; they would
find that that extravagance was caused by a
person whom the Premier implicitly trusted
as his brother Minister; and not only would
the Premier find that, as time advanced, but the
public would find also that from the first day
the late Colonial Treasurer was Colonial Trea-
surer there had been a leakage, and a great and
lamentable want of that financial care and skill
which the late Colonial Treasurver always as-
saed to be possessed of, and which, if he did
not possess, left the hon. gentleman in a posi-
tion which he could hardly describe.

Mr, DICKSON said that the hon. gentleman
had indulged in a tirade of vituperation which
he did not think had ever been excelled in
that House. He seemed to imagine that his
{Mr, Dickson’s) special mission here was, to use
the hon. member’s own words, to degrade him.
Far be it from him to attempt to degrade the
hon. member, or any other member of the Com-
mittee. That was not his role, and he could not
understand why the hon. gentleman should
attribate to him a tendency to ignore his good
qualities because he chose, and had chosen, that
evening, tu point out what he conceived to be the
very extraordinary departure the hon. member
made that day, and what he conceived to be also
a very ungenerous departure in attacking a
gentleman whom he had accepted as his
leader, and attacking him in his absence.
Had the hon. member attacked the Premier
when he was present, and announced his
departure from his views, he could have under-
stood it. But the hon. member chose a most
inopportune time for an attack, which was really
unworthy of the hon. gentleman. The hon.
member had chosen to say a great deal about the
condition of the Treasury, and his (Mr. Dickson’s)
mismanagement of the department. He was quite
prepared, whenever the Premier or the hon,
member chose to enter upon a discussion of the
affairs of the Treasury, to show the House and
the country the affairs of the department which
he undertook to conduct with the advice of the
Government. He wag not ashamed to enter into
what took place there, and whatever charges of
extravagance might be levelled against him in
connection therewith, they had no foundation
whatever, and were only such as were generally
made against the whole administration. How-
ever, he was not going to make an apologetic
speech on the matter. He felt he had donme his
duty to the country and he was quite prepared
to defend his administration of the Treasury,
whenever the hon. member for North Brisbane
Mr. Brookes, or the Premier might wish. The
hon. member had endeavoured to show the
extent of his reading by referring to a well-
known character from one of Charles Dickens’s
novels—Pecksniff—and no doubt intended to
convey the idea that he (Mr. Dickson) was the
original of the picture. Well, he did not
care what the hon. member might say of
him, or with what abuse the hon. member might
try to bespatter him. When he parted from
the Government on matters of public policy—
it was well known that there was no private
feeling in the matter—the hon. member was one
of the first to abuse and persecute him and to
endeavour to induce the electors who had re-
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turned him for fourteen years to withdraw their
confidence in him. The hon. member went out
of his way to do it, itinerating the electorate and
using every means in his power to discredit
him with his electors. That was an unworthy
thing to do, and he (Mr. Dickson) would have
been perfectly justified had he expressed soreness
in the matter ; but he did not feel any soreness,
because he was aware of the hon. member’s
eccentricities. However, if the hon. member
chose to cross swords, he (Mr, Dickson) was
quite prepared to cross swords with him. The
hon. member in drawing upon Charles Dickens’s
novel had not quoted the words of the novelist,
which might possibly have given the portrait
greater significance, but had coined words
for the ocecasion, adapting themm to the
position of an ex-Treasurer, and altogether
surrounding the figure with embellishments and
accompaniments not strictly in keeping with the
original portrait. Now, there was a man named
John Dryden whe wrote some poetry about 200
years ago, and if the hon. gentleman had ever
read any of the works of that celebrated writer
he would find words that exactly deseribed him,
Mr. Brookes. He would just quote six lines,
and let the hon. gentleman know that if he was
inclined to go into Hnglish literature to vilify
him (Mr. Dickson), he also could go there and find
portraits which perhaps might be a still more
accurate rvepresentation of the hon. gentleman.
He would read what was said of a very eminent
statesman at home, of a very vacillating and un-
certain character 200 years ago :—
““A man so various that he seemed to be

Not one, but all mankind’s epitome;

Stiff in opinions, always in the wrong,

Was everything by starts, and nothing long;

But, in the course of one revolving moou,

Was chymist, fiddler, statesman, and buffoon.”

Mr. MOREHEAD: I think that is the
highest compliment I ever heard paid to a
member of this House.

Mr. CHUBB said that, after the discussion
which had just taken place, it was, perhaps, as
well to go back to the question. He might tell
the hon. member for North Brisbane, if he did
not know it, that the quotation just delivered
was written respecting a member of the aris-
tocracy—a great duke—so the hon., member
ought to feel highly complimented. He (Mr.
Chubh) would have thought that, in the calm,
cool hours which had elapsed since 12 o’clock,
the Government would have considered the posi-
tion, and have come to the conclusion that it was
utterly impossible for them to expect to pass
that motion. It was well understood that the
motion was not going to pass, and, therefore, it
seemed futile to waste the time and stamina
of hon. members in a vain effort. Those pro-
ceedings proved to him more than ever the
mistake that was made in 1884 in passing
the £10,000,000 loan. For his part, he thought
now it was a great mistake on the part of the
Opposition thatthey did not then take the course
theyhad taken on the present occasion, and stone-
wall that loan. The hon. gentleman who then
led the Opposition prophesied what would happen.
He told hon. members that the passing of
that loan would hang millstones round their
necks, deprive them of their freedom, and ham-
psr them in such a way that they would be
unable to give an independent vote upon the
subjects that came before them. In order to
secure the support of hon. members, he believed
there was a railway proposed in almost every
constituency of the colony except KEnoggera.
That was an unkind cut, but he supposed the
exigencies of the times, and, perhaps, the insuf-
ficiency of money prevented one being pro-
posed for that particular locality., It might be
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convenient, as hon. members seemed to be in a
listening mood, to give a brief history of the
£10,000,000 loan, with a view to applying the cir-
cumstances to the particular question before the
Committee. The first reference to the introduc-
tion of a large and unprecedented loan was in
a speech made by the hon. gentleman now at
the head of the Government, on the 10th
January, 1884, He referred to the necessity for
continuing the public works policy, and the
liability of going upon the money market for a
loan. He said :—

““We shall not, therefore, bring in a great Loan Bill
or a great scheme of public works this session. We
have the fullest confidence in the borrowing powers of
the colony. We do not believe that those powers are
in the slightest degree impaired. We are perfectly
aware that many attempts have been made in Great
Britain, in connection with c¢olonial loans of late to
‘hear’ the market—sometimes apparently successful ;
but we have no doubt whatever that,if proper counsels
are followed in abttempting to float loans in London,
there will be no difficulty in the matter as long as we
satisfy the lending public that our finances are in a
sound condition.”

He would pause there to ask, were the finances
in a sound condition at the present time ?

“I trust that the scheme which we shall be in a
position to bring forward in June will be of such a
nature as to give this satisfaction., We do intend to
carry ont our public works by loan and not by land
grants, and we intend to carry them out as vigorously
as they have ever been carried out in the past. When
we ask to borrow money it will be for the pur-
pose of construeting railways, improving our har-
bours, the conservation of water in all parts of
the colony, and the extension of telegraph lines.
Without going into details, I may state that it is the
intention of the Government, if they have the oppor-
tunity, to extend the trunk lines into the interior at a
more rapid rate than has characterised that work during
the last few years. We hope to extend each line at the
rate of from forty to fifty miles a year, nntil they begin
to realise that profit to the State which I am satisfied
they will &o when they have got through the diffienlt
country. A further trunk Iine is a line from the Gulf
to the interior, and early steps will be taken for ascer-
taining the best rounte for the conmstruetion of it
‘With respect to coastal and branch railways, we hope to
be able to construct them at an equal rate of mileage
per annum with the trunk lines. I need not indicate
what particular railways will be constructed, or which
will be constructed first. Some have been already
authorised, and the mnecessity of others has heen
indicated by public opirion in the colony ; hut as we
are not in a position to propose a Loan Bill for that
purpose this session, the present is not the time to state
what we intend to do in that direction.”

That was the first intimation they had that the
Government intended to bring in a large loan
proposal ; but even there the amount was not
stated—no information was given beyond the
fact that it was to be a large Loan Bill. A few
years before that, when the then Government,
headed by Sir Thomas MeIlwraith, proposed to
bring in a£3,000,000 loan, it was objected to and
criticised in the most powerful manner. It was
said that the proposition was absurd-—that it was
toobig a loan. Hon. members asked, why go in
for £3,000,000 ; why not borrow as much as was
required from time to time ?  But circumstances
altered cases. As soon as they changed from the
Opposition sideto the Government benches they
out-heroded Herod,and brought in amorespirited,
more extensive, more far-reaching loan than their
predecessors. Possibly if the late Government
had proposed a £10,000,000 loan the present
Administration would have tried to cap it with a
£20,000,000 loan. During the electioneering
campaign that took place before that, the country
was not told that that enormous £10,000,000 loan
was to be introduced. They were simply told
that the public works would be pushed on
vigorously. It was not till the second session of
the present Parliament that the Government
disclosed their scheme in all its details, That
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was referred to in His Excellency’s Speech ab
the opening of Parliament in the following
words +—

“My Governmment are fully impressed with the neces-~
sity of early and vigorous action in carrying out railways
and other public works, and are confident that the
resources and credit of the colony are such as to war-
rant the incurring of all neecessary obligations for that
purpose. You will accordingly be asked to make pro-
visxion by way of loan for the further extension of trunk
lines of railway into the interior, and for the construc-
tion of a line of railway between Cloncurry and the Gulf
of Carpentaria, as well as for the construction and
cxtension of other lines in the nore settled districts, the
extension of electrie telegraphs, the improvement of
harbours and rivers, and other works of publie utility.””

That was in July, 1884, and that was the only
intimation then of the nature and extent of the
intended loan proposals of the Government. In
the debate on the Address in Reply, the hon.
mewmber for Townsville, Mr. Macrossan, referred
to that paragraph of the Speech and said :—
“We are told that the Government are fully
impressed with the necessity of early and vigoious
action in earrying out railways and other public works.
I am very glad to hear it. There have been times in the
history of the party opposite when they were not
impressed with that necessity, and I am glad they have
been converted to the policy of the late Government,
which was a vigorous publie works poliey. They tell us
also that they ure going to build a railway from some
port on the Gulf of Carpentaria—the port is not stated,
though the Premier gave an explanation yesterday—to
Cloneurry, a distance of between 250 and 300 miles.”

That was to be a trunk line to supersede the
transcontinental line proposved by their prede-
cessors, but it had not been commenced yet.
After that Ministers, in the course of their visits
to different parts of the colony made speeches at
various places, in which they announced the
great policy they were going to bring forward.
It was to be a Loan Bill, and a Land Bill which
was to provide revenue to pay the interest on
loans.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN called atten-
tion to the state of the Committee.

Quorum formed.

Mr. CHUBB said that Ministers, in addressing
the constituents in different parts of the colony,
stated that they were going to bring forward a
Loan Bill and a Land Bill of such arevolutionary
character that it would bring in such an enormous
revenue that the interest on the cost of public
works would weigh no more than a feather on the
back of the people of the colony. They knew what
it weighed now. It weighed £850,000 per annum,
and when the balance of the ten millions was
borrowed and spent, it would be overa millionster-
ling a year, and as far as they could see at present
there were no means by which that amount of
interest was going to be met by increased revenue
from the Land Act, The Land Act had enough
to do to pay its own working expenses. So
much for the keynote which was sounded in
regard to the introduction of the great scheme of
financial progress which was to mark the era of
office of the present Government. The Loan
Estimates were tabled by the Colonial Treasurer
in November, 1884, and a financial statement
was made in respect of it in December. The
language used on that occasion by the hon.
gentleman who was in charge of the finances of
thecolony was of the most exaggerated description.
It was coloured in the highest degree, according
to subsequent events. Of course it was very
easy to be wise after the event. Still, those were
the aspirations of the hon. gentleman; those
were the inducements which were held out to the
House to accept that loan. He might here say
that hon. members on that side of the House
consistently and persistently opposed not only the
loan, but the greater portion of the appropria-
tion of it when it came before the House in
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ndividual votes. He would read what the hon.
zentleman said on the occasion of moving the
Loan Estimates :—

“In moving the resolution 10 go inte Committee of
Supply, I propose to make a few remarks on the Loan
Estimates for 1884-83, which I have the gratification to
submit to the IIouse. These Estimates embrace an
amount surpassing in magnitude any previous loan
proposal ; but which is, I confidentiy assert, such as the
cirenmstances of the colony demand, and its financial
position and eredit enable it to sustain. The colony
may be likened unto a man comencing business with
small means, who has inherited lavge sources of nate-
rial wealth, undeveloped through lack of capital, mis-
trust of investors, or want of a wmarket, having but a
small amount of ready money, and eyually restricted
credit, has at length surmounted preliminary dilticulties,
and having wisely econserved his eredit, and duly dis-
charged, as they matured, his obligations, finds himsolf
in a position to make unwonted use of hisgood name, and
withsueh extended ereditto afford unprecedentedeacou-
ragement to the further and fuller development of his
greatnatural sources of wealth. That the pre<ent tine is
opportune for availing ourseclve: of the ecredit of the
colony to an unprecedentedly large extent is not only
judicious, but I contend, absolutely necessary. Unfor-
tunately, through abnormally severe seasons which
have prevailed throughont Australia, onc at least of our
great mational and producing industries has hetn
severely smitten. The great pastoral industry of Aus-
tralin continuously demands and rveceives the
support of a large proportion of the capital pos
sessed by our financial institutions; and although
I have no doubt that, with a return of favour-
able sea-ons, the pastoral industry must speedily
assume largely increased estent and prosperity,
yet it is not too much to opine that, owing to
the cause aforcsaid, financial nurture may for the
present be slightly retarded. In addition, it may be
pointed out that the expenditure of our several pastoral
establishments in the cmployment of labour, supplies
of stores, and coustruction of improvements, all of
which contribute to a large and permanent circulation
of money among the wage-earning and busivess con-
munity, may from similar cause, be considerably re-
stricted. The important agrieultural interest has also
hadto contend witha season of unparalleled severity, and
although the drounghthas happily now broken up in the
coast and adjacent districts, and an abundant wheat
harvest has rewarded the care of the farmers in the
fertile lands of the Darling Downs, while the condition
of general crops on the coast lands is reported to
be highly encouraging, stiil tliec absence of production
in the immediate past, and the enforced purchase out-
stde the colony for a consideranle time oflarge qnantities
of produece of which we have been hitherto accustomed
to see grown within, cannot wholly pass away without
ereating some apprehension of financial pressure. To
relieve this feeling is, I contend, among the functions
of sound administration, and if any such feelingshould
have found admission into the guidance of our large
finaneial institutions, Government shonld now by bold
vigorous action speedily extirpate such nervousness. and
restore full confidence in the soundness and elasticity
of our great industries, while suffering recovery from a
natural temporary depression. In the face of these
contingencies, unfortunately too probable, and to pre-
vent, as far as possible, any derangement of the com-
mereial and financial interests of the country. the
Government desire to push on with vigour the prosecn-
tion of important public works, to open np approach to
the great interior resources of the colony, to stimnlate
pastoral and predial settlement under the encouraging
conditions of present land legislation, to afford greater
facilities of commmnication hetween the ceptres of
population, to introduce a large accession to our popu-
lation by whom industries will be promoted and employ-
ment forlabour helikewise extended. to aidlocal bodies
in their efforts to introduce sanitary and munieipal
reforms and fmprovements within their respective juris-
dictions, to extend the benefits of communication by
theelectric telegraph to the ysanoter parts of ourlarge ter-
ritory, to improve our numerous harbours and rivers so
that they may receive in safety the commerecial navies of
the world; in short, sir. to provide for such extended
public services as are embraced in the Loan Estimates—
services whieh, while they will hinmediately contribute
to the prospeiity of the people of the colony throughont
its full extent, are such as the country not only de-
mands, but, being largely of a reproductive character,
will, in time, assuredly relieve and largely assist the
revenue, and thereby become important items in the
country’s natural assets. And I have vet further to
add that, as with the impetus to grazing settlement
which is afforded under the new Land Bill, the finan.
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cial institutions of the colony may, in all probability,
be largely applied to for pecuuniary assistance, with
whieh the present condition of pastoral enterprise
might interfere, the maintenance by the Government of
considerable balanees of funds within the colony may
enable these requirements to obtain fuller and more
favourable attention than they would otherwise receive,
especially were money to become stringent.”

Those were large words. There was to be an
era of universal prosperity throughout the land;
everybody was to be rich and prosperous, and no
industry was to suffer in any way. The con-
cluding words had a peculiar and important
bearing on theremarks made that day with regard
to the statement of proposed loan expenditure,
tabled on Tuesday by the Colonial Treasurer.
The Colonial Treasurer had told them what the
balance at the Treasury would be at the end
of the financial year, after expending the
moneys on the various works mentioned in
that statement, and it was pointed out that
it would be mnecessary to withdraw from
the banks from time to time large sums
which were now deposited with them, which
would mature and be withdrawn. If it was
necessary in 1884 to borrow large sums to enable
the banks to maintain strong balances of Govern-
ment funds to assist trade, was it not the case
now? Would not the Government be bound, if
they withdrew those moneys from the banks, to
restore other moneys in their place, so that
the objects aimed at in the remarks of the
hon, gentleman might be carried into effect.
Every hon. member knew, and it had already
been powerfully pointed out, that the effect of
those sudden large withdrawals of public moneys
from the banks meant the squeezing of their
private customers, Banks must have money,
and either their outside customers would have to
be squeezed or the Government would have again
to go into the London money market to raise
more money to put into the banks. It had been
the practice of the colony for many years to
keep large balances in the banks, and 1f the Gov-
ernment were to withdraw those large sums of
money something was bound to happen.

Mr. DICKSON: The money would go to
increase private balances.

Mr. CHUBB said it would go to pay for con-
strueting works mentioned in the loan statement,
and a great portion of it would be sent to England
to pay for materials. So that, while probably a
few individuals might gain, the great majority
of people who had dealings with banks would
have to find the money which the Government
would want to discharge their liabilities with. In
the same financial statement occurred the follow-
ing paragraphs, with reference to the motion now
under discussion:—

“ Provision to the extent of £500,000 is asked for the
extension of the Southern and Western line from Ips-
wich to Warwick direct, whereby @ saving in distance
of fifty-four miles on the line wid Toowoomba will be
effected. The proposed line is estimated as seventy-
seven miles in length, and will bring the southern
border of the colony into direct communication with
the seaboard.

“A southern border line from Warwick towards St.
George is also placed on these Estimates, and £250,000
is asked on account. This is a line which is highly
desirable, not only in the interests of the communities
provided thereby with railway communication, bub
also to protect the revenue and muintain the trade of
the colony within our own territory, inasmuch as our
southern neighbours, from the extension of their rail-
ways to within cowmnparatively short distances of our
southern and south-western froutiers, are rapidly
acquiring a monopoly of our inland trade to the pre-
judice of our own mevchants and importers, and to the
1oss of trafiic on our own inland lines of railway.”

He did not think it necessary to again discuss the
question of trade disputed between the hon. mem-
ber for Enoggera, the hon. member for Darling
Downs, and the hon. member for Warrego, Mr,
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Donaldson, There had been a returnlaid upon the
table of the House showing what the great trade
had been along the border of the proposed line,
If the construction of the line was only justified
by that return, then a similar return in any other
part of the colony would justify a railway there.
He was just reminded of a circumstance that
occurred in connection with the passing of the
Land Act. Hon. members would recollect a
large map that hung on the wall of the Cham-
ber showing the boundaries to which the Act
was proposed to be extended, and it left out the
south-western corner of the colony, to which,
however, it was extended afterwards. The
object of mnot extending it in the first
instance was stated by the then Minister for
Lands to be to keep the New South Wales
people from coming on to that country and
settling, the result of which would be that theyv
could create the trade which it was now pro-
posed to construct that line to carry. They all
knew that the people there had water carriage,
which would always complete with railway
carriage. HKven when the railway to Gympie
was completed goods would still be sent by
water. The steamers would not be run off, hut
would run as usual between Brishane and Mary-
borough. And it would be so in the case of the
proposed railway. As long as the people had a
navigable river in that part of the colony
it would compete successfully with a line of such
length as that line wus. It had been said
that there was no intention to proceed with the
vie rectw that session, and that the proposed
line to Thane’s Creek was only a branch line,
The House was not to be asked to commit itself
to the railway to St. George, and he would ask
what would be the good of arailway twenty-five
miles in length to collect the trade of the
southern border, which was far beyond the ter-
minal point of the proposed line? He believed
that the returns received from Stanthorpe, and
one or two other border places near it, did not
pay the cost of collection.

Mr. NELSON said he rose to a point of
order.

The CHAIRMAN : What is the point of
order?

Mr. NELSON said he was not satisfied with
the form of the resolution. The point of order
was one he had raised when it was first proposed
to go into committee to consider that resolution,
and they were then told that it would be ex-
plained when they got into committee. He
thought a resolution of that sort should be clear
concise, and free from vagueness and ambiguity
If the Chairman would look at the motion he
would see that the Committee were asked to
approve of—

“The plan, section, and book of reference of the
proposed railway from Warwick to Thanc’s Creek, in
length 24 miles 50 chains 51 links, as laid upon the table
of the House on the 23rd day of Septewnber, 1887.”

He had never seen the plans there described of a
railway from Warwick to Thane’s Creek laid
upon the table of the House. Of course, the
Premier had stated that it was a distinction
without a difference ; but he maintained that it
was a matter of the utmost gravity and impor-
tance. If it was a railway to St. George, then
the remarks of the hon. member who was
addressing the Committes were relative to the
subject ; but if it was only a branch line, then
his remarks were entirely out of place. More-
over, they would recollect the long and eloquent
speech they had heard from the hon. member for
Toowoomba last night, in which he treated it
as a railway from Warwick to St. George. But
after the statement the Premier had made, it
would appear that the hon. member’s remarks
were irrelevant, because the Premier had stated

[ASSEMBLY.]

Thane’s Creek Railway.

clearly that it was a branch line, although it
might become a main line some time. Then the
hon. the ex-Treasurer had told them that if it
was a branch line he could not support it ; that
he could only support it as a line of naticnal
importance, a border line, Therefore, it seerped
that they were getting into a state of confusion,
and he thought, before they went any further, they
should know distinetly what the plans, section,
and book of reference really were. The Premier’s
letter, which had heen read that day, distinctly
and clearly described it as a branch line; if that
were so the discussion should be confined to that.
He would point out to the Chairman that the
book of referance stated that it was for a railway
from Warwick towards St. George, and it was
therefore not in accordance with the resolution
the Committee were now asked to agree to.

The CHAIRMAN said the book of reference
was not in accord with the proposition before the
Committee, in which the words “St. George”
were not mentioned. Tt had been stated by the
Premier that the first section of the proposed
line was the first section of the railway from
Warwick to St. George.

Mr. MOREHEAD :aid, did he understand the
hon. gentleman to rule against the point of order
raised by the hon. member for Darling Downs ?

The CHATRMAN : Just so.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he thought it was a
pity the hon. gentleman had not put it more
clearly before the Committee. However, he was
new to office—he would not like to call him
green to the office, because he might object o it
—-but, at any rate, he thought it was a matter of
regret that the first decision which he had given
in the novel position he now occupied should be
one that did not commend itself to the intelli-
gence of that Committee.

Mr. CHUBB said that, speaking to the point
of order, he might point out that the Railway
Act required that there should be laid on the
table of the House the plans, specifications, and
hook of reference of any proposed railway.
There had been laid on the table plans, specifica-
tions, and book of reference of aline described
as a railway from Warwick towards St. George,
section No. 1, from Kast Warwick station
to Thane’s Creek. He was aware that the
House might approve of the plans and speci-
fications first, and make the necessary appro-
priation afterwards, but in the present instance
an appropriation had been made for a line from
Warwick to St. George, and the plans tabled
were for the first section of that line; but the
motion was for the approval of a branch line from
Warwick to Thane’s Creek—a line which was
not mentioned in the Loan Estimates at all. The
point of order was that they were discussing a
motion as to the approval of plans and specifi-
cations which were not on the table of the
House.

The CHAIRMAN : There is nothing in the
resolution with regard to a branch line.

Mr. MOREHEAD said that, as a rule, the
Committee were not accustomed to irrelevant
interruptions from the Chair. When they wanted
an expression of opinion from the Chair they
asked for it.

The PREMIER: It is the Chairman’s busi-
ness to keep order.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he fancied it would
take the Chairman all his time to do that. Asa
rule, one volunteer was worth two pressed men ;
but if the Chairman would take his advice, he
would keep very quiet, and not provide any
texts for hon. members to preach upon. There
were some very good preachers on his side,
though they might have some very bad texts.
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Mr. NORTON said that, speaking to the point
of order, he wished to draw attention to the
fact that the Minister for Works himself had
explained that the cover of the plans was the
cover of the plans introduced last session, and
that if he had anticipated any objection to the
dexcription he would have had a fresh cover
provided. Attached to the plans was a memo-
randum to the effect that Mr. Dutton laid on
the table of the House plans, sections, and
book of reference of the proposed rail-
way from Kast Warwick to Thane’s Creek;
and he maintained that they could not be
the plans of the first section of a line from
Warwick to St. George. He thought the ques-
tion raised by the hon. member for Northern
Downs was a very important one. According to
the Premier’s statement they were in reality the
plans of a branch agricultural railway which
might possibly, at some future time, be carried
on towards St. George. Ministers who had
spoken on the subject had either grossly misled
the Committee or else the plans on the table
were not the plans of the first section of the line
from Warwick to St. George.

Mr. NELSON said that on aclose examination
of the plans he could not see that they could be
in any way identified with the resolution ; there-
fore he begged to move—he did so with very
great reluctance—that the Chairman’s ruling be
disagreed to, and the point of order be referred to
"Mr. Speaker for his decision,

The CHAIRMAN : What is the point of
order?

Mr. CHUBB said the point of order was that
there were no plans and specifications on the
table which were relevant to the motion before
the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN : There has been no ruling
on that point.

Mr. MOREHEAD : Are you
Foote, that there has been no ruling ?

The PREMIER said he thought the Speaker
had given a ruling on the point in the House.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he hoped the Chair-
man would not allow himself to be ruled by what
the Premier thought the Speaker had done.

The CHATRM AN said he had not given any
ruling on the point suggested by the hon. member
for Bowen,

Mr, NELSON : Have you given a ruling on
the point I raised ?

The CHATRMAN : Ves.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he hoped the Chair-
man would explain to the Committee the exact
ruling he had given,because it might be converted
into w precedent.

The CHAIRMAN said the point of order put
by the bon. member for Northern Downs was in
reference to the resolutions now before the Com-
mittee—was the motion embodied in the reso-
lution identical with the plans and specifications
laid on the table of the House? His answer was
that he thought it was,

Mr. MOREHEAD : The Chairnan had put
it in a somewhat complicated form, and he
thought it ought to be put into writing by the
Clerk-Assistant.

Mr, CHUBB said the point of order was
whether the plans and specifications required by
the statute had been tabled to give legal effect
to the resolution before the Committee.

The CHATRMAN : Will the hon. member
put his question in writing ?

Mr. MOREHEAD said, while that was being
done he would like to have the Chairman’s
opinion about i, which he was sure they all
valued highly, for he must say he never saw a

sure, Mr.
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Chairman il the chair so ably and so completely
as the hon. member. In fact he offered a strik-
ing contrast to the occupation of the real Chair-
man of Committees. He was inclined to think
the imitation Chairman was very much better
than the real Chairman. At any rate, if the
hon. member was permanently appointed to the
position, they would get value for their money.
He moved that the Chairman leave the chair,
report no progress, and ask leave to sit again.

The CHAIRMAN : It will be necessary to
decide the point of order that has arisen before
the hon. member’s motion is put.

Mr. MOREHEAD said, would the Chairman
be good enough to tell them what was the point
of order? The Committee could not sit there
waliting while the hon. member for Bowen sat at
the table preparing points of order. Had the
Committee come to that ? He had made a pro-
posal to the Committee that the Chairman leave
the chair, report no progress, and ask leave to sit
again. Had he again to ask the Chairman to put
the motion he had made ? :

The CHAIRMAN: I think I am not in a posi-
tion to put the question until I have received the
point of order of the hon. member for Bowen.

Mr. STEVENSON said he did not quite know
what was the question before the Committee.

Mr. NORTON said a peculiar question had
arisen in comnection with that point of order.
The hon. member for Bowen had been for some
time preparing & point of order, and the business
of the Committee had been delayed. Could an
hon. member occupy a whole evening in prepar-
ing a point of order? Was there any limit to
the time allowed for sodoing? In New Zealand,
he remembered, Sir George Grey stood up in his
place in the House and said nothing, and yet
claimed that he was in possession of the floor, and
the Spealker ruled that he was in order, and he did
occupy the attention of the House, which very
possibly he did. Now, bearing that in mind,
could an hon. member occupy the time of the
Committee as long as he liked In preparing points
of order

The PREMIER said he hoped the Chairman
would deal with a tangible motion, and not with
a conundrum.

Mr. MOREHEAD said if the Chairman gave
his ruling in favour of an hon. member who
happened to be of an inventive turn of mind,
and who sat at the table preparing points of order,
which the Premier had just called conundrums—
and he was perfectly certain they would be conun-
drums to the Chairman—he would sit at the
table himself and compose some. He thought
the Chairman would have to be much more
clever than the young man or woman who was
advertised to tell the number upon a bank note
under any system of deception that might be
practised. But he thought he could dodge the
hon. member if he gave his ruling in the direction
which he was afraid, from the smile on his
amiable countenance, it was going to be. He
did not know of any point of order or disorder.

The PREMIER : Possibly the latter.

Mr. MOREHEAD =said, after all, disorderly
people were not the worst people. He would
give the hon. gentleman a lecture on larrikins, if
he liked, What waslarrikinism but misdirected
energy? If the Premier had directed his energy
in a proper divection, possibly he would have
been a respectable member of society; but he
belonged to a profession notorious for its dis-
honesty. The hon. gentleman’s energies had
been diverted into a channel which had led him
into his present position, surrounded by his pre-
sent colleagues, and supported by his present
supporters, He could not imagine a depth
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of degradation deeper than that in which
the Premier was placed at present. He hoperld
the Chairman would rule against the point of
order, and he knew that gentleman would cheer-
fully accept the position he should put him into,
that was outside the chair. He certainly
thought his motion ought to take precedence of a
paltry legal quibble raised by a pettifogging
Jawyer.

Mr, NORTON said perhaps the Chairman
would like him to put his point of order in
writing. That gentleman ought to have an
opportunity of thinking the matter over.

The CHAIRMAN : The point of order is this:
Are the plans and specifications laid on the
table of the House the plans and specfications
alluded to in the resolution? T say that they
are,

glr. NORTON said he raised another point of
order,

The PREMIER : That is no point of order,
You cannot put a point of order until the ques-
_tion has been put.

Mr. MOREHEAD : He can.

Mr. NORTON said he raised a point of order
before the Chairman put the question.

Mr. STEVENSON said the hon. member had
no right to raise a point of order until the ques-
tion had been put.

Mr. NORTON said he hoped the Chairman
would decide whether a point of order could be
raised before the question was put.

The CHAIRMAN : The hon. gentleman, in
my opinion, should have the privilege of raising
a point of order before a question is put ; but the
point raised by the hon. member for Port Curtis
18 not relevant to the question ; and according to
my opinion, the motion of the hon. member for
Balonne comes first,

Mr. CHUBB said the decision, he was afraid,
was not in accordance with practice.

Mr. STEVENSON said he objected to any-
one speaking until the question was put. If the
Chairman was fit for the position he held, the
motion of the leader of the Opposition should be
put—that the Chaivmon leave the chair, report
no progress, and obtain leave to sit again.

Mr. CHUBB said it had been decided
that if a motion had been moved it was not com-
petent for another hon. member to raise a point
of order until that had been put. He thought
that ruling was wrong, because it might perhaps
be shown that the motion itself was out of order.
He hoped the Chairman would reconsider his
decision, otherwise he should have to move that
the question be referred to Mr. Speaker,

The CHAIRMAN said the hon. member
had mistaken him ; that was not his ruling.
He ruled that it was competent for an hon.
member to raise a point of order on a ques-
tion that was being put from the Chair, but at
the same time he ruled that the point of order of
the hon. member for Port Curtis could not be put,
because it was irrelevant to the question at issue
—that the Chairman leave the chair, report no
progress, and obtain leave to sit again.

Mr. STEVENSON : What is the question
before the Committee, Mr. Foote ?

The CHATRMAN : The question is that I do
now leave the chair, report no progress, and
obtain leave to sit again.

Mr, NORTON said, before that was put he
would raise a point of order. He had been
stopped raising points of order before, although
the Chairman delayed putting the question until
Mr, Chubb had written out a point of order.
He wanted to know, could an hon. member sit
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down at the table and write out a point of order,
without any regard to the time he occupied in
writing ? Now that question had been put, he
would ask a ruling on that point. Could a
member of the Committee occupy an unlimited
space of time in writing out a point of order?

The PREMIER : That question is not before
the Committee.

Mr. MOREHEAD said, speaking to the point
of order, he did not think it fair to puzzle the
Chairman with a numnber of problematical cases.
The Chairman, he was certain, was a matter-of-
fact man, and would therefore confine himself to
one point. The position which the Chairman
held with great honour to himself and the House
he held with reluctance, and he was sure he
would confine himself to the question he (Mr.
Morehead)had put before the Committee,although
it might tend to the removal of the Chairman
from the bigh office which he held. If it was
carried it would lead to the hon. gentleman
only having had a few brief minutes of authority,
but still it would be satisfactory to know that he
had occupied the proud and exalted position of
Chairman of the legislature of Queensland for
twenty-three minutes. The position was one
which he (Mr, Morehead), however much he had
aspired to, had never attained, and, although
it had been occupied by Mr, Foote for only a
few brief moments, it would be an additional
ring of the halo which would surround his head.
Although he felt keenly having to displace the"
hon. gentleman from the position which he filled
with so much honour, he must ask him to put
the question which he had proposed.

Mr. NORTON said that, out of consideration
for the fact that the Chairman occupied the
chair for the first time, he thought he would do
well to withdraw his point of order for the
present and allow the question to be put.

Question—That the Chairman leave the chair,
report no progress, and ask leave to sit again—
put, and the Committee divided :—

Avss, 16.

Messrs. Norton, Chubb, Morehead, Murphy, Ferguson,
Palmer, Stevenson, Paftison, Adams, White, Black,
Donaldson, Nelson, Campbell, Aland, and W. Brookes.

Nogs, 22.

Sir 8. W. Griffith, Measrs. Rutledge, Jordan, Moreton,
Dutton, Sheridan, Dickson, Annear, Higson, McMaster,
Mellor, 8. W. Brooks, Kellett, Kates, Wakefield, Allan,
Satkeld, Maectarlane, Thorn, Morgan, Bulcoek, and
Izambert.

(Question resolved in the negative.

Mr. CHUBB said he would endeavour to pro-
ceed with the discussion. Hehad been referring
to the financial statement of the late Colonial
Treasurerwhen heintroduced the Loan Estimates
in 1884, for the purpose of making a comparison
between the hon. gentleman’s language on that
occasion and the facts asthey now existed. The
hon. gentleman stated then that—

¢ In 1883-4, with a population of 288,000 and a loan

indebtedness ot £16,570.850, of which sum £8,009,000
had been expended in railway construction, the net
earnings from such railways amounted to £273,331, or
nearty 3% per cent. on the whole of the capital sum so
employed.”
The hon. gentleman went on to justify the pro-
posal of the Government by saying that the
earnings of the railways, together with interest
on loan balances, was sufficient to discharge the
interest upon £9,255,000 of the loan indebted-
ness of the colony. The hon. member then
said i--

“It may therefore be freely admitted that the rapid
progress made by the country in the past will he
largely augmented and stimulated by the present
loan policy,and as with the encouragement of immi-
gration and land settlement population and produnction
must largely and rapidly increase, the angmented



Warwick to

charge for interest distributed over four or five years
hence, will, I am assured, be provided without any
appreciable pressure.”
It was true there was a largely augmented
charge for interest.

Mr. MOREHEAD called attention to the
state of the Committee,

Quorun formed.

Mr., CHUBB said he would pass from that
portion of the statement, and refer to another
portion where the hon. gentleman said :—

“The proper policy for the Government to pursue
will be to sell such portion of the loan annually as they
may deem necessary, and as the favourable condition of
the money market presents. My desire is that if any
Iarge instalments be sold the money accruing therefrom
should be introduced into the colony. While the
banking account of the Government should be fully
maintained, I think that the other banking corporations
should also be invited to become custodians of part of
our public funds, and I beiieve that a satisfactory agree-
ment can be made with them on the condition that
these deposits so made should be withdrawn from them
ratably, and with due notice heforehand.”

The hon. member also referred to a former
speech he had made on a financial subject, when
he said :i—

‘I am convinced that the loan proposals of the Gov-

ernment at the present time will do more to float the
country over any present finaneial pressure that may
e felt, will do more to float it into a fuller tide of pros-
perity thau by the driblets of loans which we have been
accustomed to deal with in the past.”
Three millions was called a driblet, and now there
was a driblet of ten millions ; but the interest on
that was by no means a driblet. He was afraid
they would all be giblets before they found the
money to pay the interest.

“ Apprehension is always f.1t, doubtless, when a

country Hborrows to a larger extent than it has formerly
been accustomed to do; but I should like to dispel
that apprehension, and the feeling that a large amount
of capital will not be administered with a due regard to
economy.”’
They knew how the vrevenue had been adminis-
tered with a due regard to economy ; the surplus
left by the previous Government was economised
till it _had all gone away, and there was a hole in
the Treasury chest. The loan money was also
going at the rate of mnearly £2,000,000 per
annum, so that even the Premier admitted it
was necessary to put on the brake; yet in the
face of that there were still four railway pro-
posals to come forward—two were on the table,
and two more were expected further on. Now,
those arguments were very seriously criticised in
1884 by the then leader of the Opposition, Sir
Thomas Mecllwraith, in a speech that would
be seen to be of a most prophetic character.
He would read some extracts from that speech,
because they ought to be impressed not only on
hon. members, but on the people of the colony.
That far-seeing man pointed out what would
happen if the country went in for that reckless
system of borrowing. He commented very
severely and at great length on the proposals, and
some of his remarks bad extreme pertinence to
the present motion, and indecd to the whole of
the loan proposals of the Government:—

“But without saying a single word about the Land
Bill, he need only read the comments wade from the
other side when he brought forward his three-million
loan in 1879, to show that if they adheredto their own
prineiples they had not the slightest shadow of an
excuse for bringing forward the loan at the present
time. He helieved the country ought to have a loan,
He had always advocated the extension of certain of
their railways by loan, and he did not believe they
ought to be stopped; but he was thoroughly
opposed to the proposilion to borrow ten millious
of money ut the present time. It was not justi-
fied by the circumstances of the colony, and it
was still less justified by the cirenmstances of Par-
lHament. What was their presentposition? They had
had legislation during the last five months which the
Premier had often described as being of a non-conten-
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tious character; but it had often been a great deal
worse than non-contentions—it had been beneath the
dignity of the IIouse to speund its timme upon. The
early part of the scssion was to a great extent wasted
in small measures, and now they asked Parliament to
vobte them ten miliions of money, at a time when it was
utterly impossible for the lHouse to give a fair and
unbiassed opinion upon the proposal. A large number
of members had left town. The pressnt was the first
time for a long while that they had seen what might be
called even a moderately small House, while last night
it was almost a display of empty benches. It would not
be possible to get auch bettsr House together, even
it they postponed the cousideration of the Iistimates for
another weeck, because many of the ecountry mem-
bers had left, and others had made arrangements to
start very soon. The consequence was that they were
obliged either to swallow the Estimates as they were
or prevent any business being done at all. He had
no mtention to prevent business being done, but at the
same time Ie had no intention that that loan should
pass without the conntry nnderstanding the principles
on which it had besn brought forward.””

As he would like a quorum formed to listen to

the remarks he was reading, he would call atten-
tion to the state of the Committee.

Quorum formed.

Mr. CHUBB said he wished the hon. members
who had just come in had been theré to listen to
what he had been reading, because it would have
shown them to what position they had brought
the country. The hon. gentleman then read an
extract from a speech delivered by the Premier,
when he was in opposition, and criticising his
(Sir T. Mcllwraith’s) policy. He proceeded to
say i—

*“On that oceasion he (Sir T. Meliwraith) had actually

laid the Loan Bstimates on the table two months hefore
the session closed, and commenced the debate by
moving them six weeks before it came to & conclusion.
On the present oceasion the Premier had already inti-
mated that the session must close next wesk, and that
of next week only two days were available. During
that short period they were asked to vote ten millions
of money in addition to all the other work that was
‘before them.””
The Chairman would remember that there were
only two days allowed for putting through
that large loan scheme of £10,000,000; he
was one of the moble few who sat up $ill
6 o'clock in the 1orning, till the sun
rose and the cocks crew, in order that they
might pass the Loan Bill. The leader of the
Onpposition then quoted several passages from
the speech of his political opponent, and next
referred to the question now before the Com-
mittee—the line from Warwick to St. George.
He remarked that—

“ IIon. members would see on the map hanging in the

Chamber the blie lines indicating the lines that the
late Government constructed; and the red lines indica-
ting the extensions would be seen to go exactly in a
gtraight line out west. The late Goverument said
exactly where their lines were going, and were prepared
to mark their railways definitely from town to town ;
but the Government had now actually drawn a straight
line a few wiles due west, knowing nothing, he believed,
of where the railways were going. Why, there was that
line from Warwick to 8t. George, in a civilised district,
where any surveyor might have made a good survey,
and yet there it was drawn on the map for 200 miles in
a straight line.”
At that time they simply had a map showing the
proposed railways, drawn in a straight line from
place to place, and they had no more information
than that until some time afterwards when they
got a little from the then Minister for Works,
Sir Thomas Mecllwraith proceeded to quote
extracts from the speech of the then Colonial
Treasurer, one paragraph of which was very
important. It was as follows :—

““As a member of this House I protest against the
new system the Treasurer seeks to introdnce, and which
I mav term Victorianising onr institutions.”

That protest was against the £3,000,000 loan
of the late Government. Would not that
same criticism apply with more force to the
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£10,000,000 loan ?  Apparently not. What was
sauce for the goose on one oceasion was not
sauce for the gander on another, Then the hon,
gentleman went on to pronounce what he (Mr.
Chubb) called a prophecy, but before reading it
he would call attention to the state of the
Committee,

Quorum formed.

Mr. CHUBB said the leader of the Opposition
then said :—

“What right had they as a Parliament to say what
work- they would construct and what money they
would borrow five years hence? Surely it was enough
to construet the works and borrow the meney which
they had been sent by their constituents to do, and not
to provide for works and borrow money to make those
works five years after the present time. At that time
the Colonial Treasurer might not be there; the men in
Parliament might be very different men from those now
sitting there; and why should they assume a position
which would make those men virtually abdicate their
functions before they had come to be members of Parlia-
ment ? They would ke rendered helpless if the
£10,000,000 loan were passed now. Hon. members wonld
see¢ how those future members would be deprived of
their liberty, and actually of their righls as representa-
tives of their constituencies, by handing over the
responsibility for borrowing the money and ¢constrneting
the works to the Ministry or the present day. He had
shown that they could not spend the money in the
time ; or rather he assumed it from the assertions made
by the Treasurer, and for the additional reason that the
Treasurer had said that they would not horrow a great
portion of the money for five years.”

That was perfectly true. The Government had
not spent the ten millions in their term of office.
By the time their term of office expired they
would not have spent more than half of it, so
that Sir Thomas McIlwraith had shown that he
was far-seeing in his views. He further stated
that—

“They would, therefore, have over £10,070,090, and a
roving commission to do what they liked wita it. They
knew perfectly well they could not spend more than
haif of it; at all events, by the Treasurer's own show-
ing, they conld not spend it. As soon as the Govern-
ment were placed in that position, who wonld say what
the Government would spend? The Ministers them-
selves. It was passed out of the hands of Parliament,
and that responsibility was given to Ministers which
Parliament should never allow to go out of its own
hands. What a dangerous power it gave the Ministry !
Ther would see at once that it gave them unlimited
power, subject always to the private log-rolling that
might go on outside themselves, but subject to no
control whatever by Parliament.”’

They had had aremarkable instance of log-rolling
last session, when it was plain that the members
of three or four districts had combined together
to pass four railways. It was a case of ““ca’
me, ca’ thee.” They got two through la«t session,
and were now trying to get the others passed.
Sir Thomas McIlwraith continued :—

“ By passing the money, they virtually handed over to
the Government the power to expeud it, and afterwards,
according to the hon. gentleman, the Government shiould
not be dictated to by Parliament. As a ratter of fact,
they would not be dictated to: and then those members
who were pressed by their constituents to support the
Government, that thev might get a railway through
their district, would find after all that they had not got
that railway. They would find they had got back to the
old days when thoss tricks were as common as they
were likely to become now.”

And further on he said :—

‘“If the loan were carried, did they think that it would
exhaust all the works in the colony; did they think
that, having gratified a few of their loudest-mouthed
supporters, they were actually supplying all the wants
of the colony with that £10,000.000 loan$ Did they
not know that they would only have raised a feeling
abroad that if people only howled long enough they
would get something? Was it not perfeetly sure that
the Government would have another Loan Bill before
long ? And as he had said before, if any other Govern-
ment came in, they were sure to have one. If the
present loan were carried, instead of having a Parlia-
ment to decide upon the money to be borrowed, and the
‘works to be carried out in the colony, they would have
2 Ministry who had the choice of spending £2 for
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every £1. They could borrow £10,070,000 or £15,000,000,
and choose the amount of work they intended going on
with, and from what portion of that £10,000,000 or
£15,000,000 they would take the money. But they did
not have Ministers for the purpose of dictating to Parlia-
mentwhat work should be goneon with; butin the pre-
sant case they would leave to the Ministyy of the day the
power to say what they ought to have the courage to
say themselves. It showed a great want of courage on
the puart of members of Partiament, and primarily upon
the part of the Ministry, for not lmiting the amount of
loan. Let them assume that the Ministry would
remain in office for another three years; they had no
right to go beyond what would be necessary for their
own term. By that time constititencies would be repre-
sented by other members, perhaps with opinions dia-
metrically opposite. But the Government had adopted
that policy not becanse it was a bold policy—because it
was opposed to everything they had done in the House
hefore—and not hesause it was a statesmanlike policy;
but beeause their friends had come tothem for railways,
and they would have their £10,000,000 to enable them
to make themn. After the modest way in which the
Supplementary Estiinates were got through last night,
he did not think the colony would have the moncy very
long.”

There was a prophecy that even if the Govern-
ment got the authority to borrow the £10,000,000
loan they would require another Loan Bill; and
it had besn proved by papers laid on the table
of the House that the Government had alveady
spent in anticipation of some future appropriation
nearly half-a-million of money. Further than
that, there was the deficit in the revenue, which
would have to be made up, some scheme for
which, they were told, would be proposed before
the session ended.

My, JESSOP called attention to the state of
the Committee.

Quorum formed.

Mr. CHUBB said the leader of the Opposition
went on to say :—

“The Parliament would, by passing the Loan Esti-
mates, be actually handing the power over to the
AMinistry of the day to choose what loans should be
spent, and what were not to be spent.”

That had come perfectly true. They had seen
the Government bring forward particular lines
and carefully selected public works, this and
that session, some at the beginning and some at
the end of a sexsion ; butit was a remarkable fact
that nearly all the railways which had been made
were railways in constituencies represented by
supporters of the Government. The hon. gentle-
man then referred to the question of depositing
large sums in the banks—remarks which had a
very important bearing upon what had been said
on the subject that day.

Mr. JESSOP called attention to the state of
the Committee.

Quorum formed.

Mr. CHUBB said the remarks he was about to
read were as follows i-—

“The hon. gentleman said the reason why they
should borrow that large amount of money was that
they ought to he prepared to lend money through the
financial institutions to the small pastoral lessees who
were 1o taks the place of those whose runs were to be
taken {from thewm by the Government. Was that s
statesmanlike view? Was it a creditable view to take
of a matter of that kind? And did not the Govern-
mend propose to expend the loan on railways and other
public works ¥ The hon. gentleman could not pay away
the money and have it at the same time. If he paid it
away for railways, how could he have it in the banks
and lend it to the small pastoral lessees, nnless he
intended having much larger balances than the
Governmeut had at the present time? He (Sir
T. Mellwraith) hoped to have an explanation
from the Colonial Treasurer on that point. He
(8ir T. MecIlwraith) did not wish to see the Govern-
ment having large amounts in the banks. If they
increased those balances it would be a bad thing for the
colony, because if the money were lent to small pastoral
lessees it would not be got back in three years; he did
not believe it could be got back under ten years. To
hold out hopes of the sort he had referred to was a pro-
position unworthy the Colonial Treasurer, But what
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&ffect would it have? It would only have one tendency,
and that was to damage the credit of the colony at
home. If they proposed to borrow money simply to
lend it again, they would be looked npon with the
greatest suspicion. There was no doubt that it was
their duty as long as they had balances in the bank to
make the best possible use of them ; but to deliberately
increase those balances for the purpose of lending
money was another thing altogether, and was a matter
which he hoped the Colonial Treasurer would recon-
sider.”

It was unnecessary to refer to any more of the
hon. gentleman’s remarks. What he had read
would satisfy any impartial listener that the
criticism passed upon the loan three years ago by
the then leader of the Opposition was true in every
respect. Hverything he prophesied had come to
pass, and now, in the fourth year of the existing
Parliament, they had a deficit of nearly £600,000,
and an over-expenditure on unauthorised loans
of £500,000, and one-half of the railways autho-
rised by the Ten Million Loan Act not carried
out, and could not possibly he carried out
during the tenure of office of the present Gov-
ernment. When the Loan Estimates were before
the Committee in detail, the proposition was put
forward for half-a-million of money for & line from
Ipswich to Warwick., Thatitem was criticised at
some length by the leader of the Opposition and
other members. Sir Thomas Mecllwraith said ;:—

“He had advocated and carricd out the line from
Ipswich to Fassifern, and among the reasons for that
line, he alleged, was his belief that a line there was in
the direction of what he conceived would ultimately be
the main route to Sydney. Ile had intended to creep
on and make the line as they foundit convenient. And
he had followed out in every particular the argument
he then used, in passingthe vote the other night for the
Passifern Branch extension. He had said, ‘Extend that
line on, and you will find that that will be actually some
day the main line to Sydney.’ He did not advocate a
line from Ipswich to Warwick. He advocated a line
through the Main Range so as to get the nearest route
to Sydney. But that was a very different proposition
from the line under discussion.”

Then he went on to say that—

“ What was wanted was to strike off from the blue

line either at Roma, at Yeulba, at Dalby, or at Beau-
araba, and they would get the trade in eighteen
months, It was said that the line from Ipswich to
Warwick would eost £500,000. £500,000 would not
look at it. It would cost a million and a-half to take
the line up there.”
The Minister for Works thereupon interjected
““Nonsense " He (Mr. Chubb) would rather
take the opinion of the leader of the Opposition
than that of the then Minister for Works ; the
former was an engineer and the latter was not,
and the estimate of the leader of the Opposition
was a better one than that of the Minister
for Works. That had, indeed, been confirmed
by the hon. member for Townsville, who had
made an elaborate series of calculations showing
that the cost would be at least £1,000,000.

Mr, STEVENSON said he rose to a point of
order. The Chairman of Committees was within
the precincts of the building, and it was a duty
for which he was paid to take the chair. He
moved that the Chairman leave the chair and
report no progress.

The CHAIRMAN : The hon, member is not
competent to do that.

Mr. STEVENSON said he was competent to
move the Chairman out of the chair at any time
he liked, if he could do it by division. He
moved that the Chairman leave the chair.

Question put, and the Committee divided :—
Ayes, 10.
Messrs. Chubb, Stevenson, Adams, Black, Fergusoi,
Jessop, Palmer, Murphy, Pattison, and Lissner.
Noks, 19.
3ir 8. W. Griffith, Messrs. Jordan, Dutton, Moreton,
Dickson, Sheridan, Annear, Isambert, Wakefield, Kates
Kellett, Bulcock, McMaster, §. W. Brooks, Salkeld,
Morgan, Higson, Thorn, and Allan,
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Question resolved in the negative.

The PREMIER moved that the Chairman
leave the chair, report no progress, and ask leave
to sit again.

Question put.

Mr, STEVENSON said, with all due defer-
ence to the Chairnan, that was not the question.
That question had been decided.

The PREMIER said the question he moved
was that the Chairman leave the chair, report no
progress, and ask leave to sit again. That was a
totally different question from the one that had
just been negatived.

My, STEVENSON said he did not know that
the Premier had moved the subsequent motion,
and he thought the Chairman was again put-
ting the question . that had just been decided.
At the same time he wanted to know how
long that farce was going to be carried on by the
Government? They all knew that they were
not sincere in making the proposed line. The
question was decided by the House last year
that the line from Warwick towards St. George
should be carried out, but the Goveru.ment,
when they found the Lower House carried it,
arranged with the Upper House to decide it in
the negative. And supposing now that the
stonewalling stopped and they let the railway
pass, would the Premier give his word that he
would arrvange for the Upper House to pass it?
Of course the whole thing was a pure matter of
arrangement. If it passed that House the hon.
gentleman would simply again arrange that it
should not pass the Upper House. Last year it
was not passed in the Upper House simply by a
member being kept away, that member being a
late resident of Warwick, He would read the
division in the Upper House on that occasion :—
For the railway i—

“The Hons. T. Macdonald-Paterson, J. D. Macansh,
H. ¢. Wood, D. P, Roberts, J. C. TFoote, J. Swan,
F. T. Brentnall, W. Ioratio Wilson, J. 8. Turner,
E. B. Torrest, W. Pettigrew, J. C. Heussler, and
A. Heron Wilson.”’

Against it—

“The Hons. F. H, Holberton, J. Taylor, ¥. T. Gregory,
A. C. Gregory, G. King, A. Raff, W. Forrest, W. Aplin,
J. €. Smyth, W. G. Power, W. F. Lambert, F. H. Hart,
and A. J. Thynne.”

WWith the exception of Mr. Macansh, not one of
those who voted for the motion knew what they
were voting for; but most of those who voted
against it were members who did know some-
thing about it. If the Government had been in
earnest in passing the railway they had a
splendid chance of doing so last year, because
they could have gob several members of the
Upper House to be present to pass the railway
after it had been passed by the Assembly.
After the late Postmaster-General had pretended
to attewpt to pass the railway in the Upper
House, what was his reply to a deputation that
waited on him in order to get a bi-weekly or
tri-weekly mail between Warwick and Goondi-
windi? The answer was that the traffic would
not justify him iu giving even a tri-weekly mail,
Did not that show that the Ministry were not
in earnest last year? If the then leader of
the Upper House was not justified in giving a
tri-weekly mail, how could the Government be
justified in making a railway? The Ministry
had simply tried to befool the members for the
district into the belief that they were in earnest,
whereas they were very glad that the motion was
being stonewalled. If the motion had not been
stonewalled the Government would have found
some other means of blocking the railway.

The PREMIER said he did not often take
any notice of what fell from the hon. member for
Normanby, and he only rose now to say that
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everybody who knew anything about the subject
knew that last session the Government used
their utmost endeavours to get the line approved
by the Upper House, and that he personally took
a great deal of trouble in the matter. Lt was
almost the only oceasionon which he ever had per-
sonally taken trouble to get anything through the
Upper House. Hverybody who knew anything
about the matter knew those were the facts,
and the hon. niember was either speaking with-
out information onthe subjeat, or else with the
knowledge that the facts were as he (the Premier)
had stated.

Mr, STEVENSON said he had spoken on
very good authority, and he repeated that he
believed it was a matter of arrangement that the
Upper House should not pass the railway., It
was from a conversation he had with Mr.,
Macdonald-Paterson at the Queensland Club in
the evening after he came from the House that
he believed the Ministry did not want to pass
the railway. Immediately the vote was passed
the Hon. Dr. Taylor appeared upon the scene,
as much as to say, ‘I wanted to be here,” but he
had no doubt it was arranged, and if it had not
been arranged with Dr. Taylor it would have
been arranged with someone else that there
should not be a majority, notwithstanding what
the Premier said.

Mr, KELLETT said a majority of the mem-
bers of the Queensland Club understood that
private conversations which took place there
were not to be repeated outside.

1The PREMIER: All gentlemen understand
that.

Mr. KELLETT said that, unfortunately for
the Queensland Club, there were some members
who were not gentlemen, who had not the least
bit of gentlemanliness in their composition, and
could never learn to be gentlemen. Some people
were not born gentlemen, but still learned to
act in as manly a way as those who were. He
would go further, and say, in the absence of the
late Postmaster-General from a place where he
could take notice of what was said in that
Chamber, that he was perfectly satisfied that
that gentleman never made any statement to the
hon. member for Normanby, or to anybody else
tantamount to what had been stated by the hon.
member—namely, that the Ministry tried to
block the railway in the Upper House. He was
thoroughly satisfied, from what he knew of the
late Postmaster-General, that hedid everything in
his power to pass the railway, and that there was
nothing he felt so much as the rejection of the
line through an unfortunate accident. Most
people in the House and in the country would
take that gentleman’s word ten thousand times
to one before the word of the hon. member who
tried to traduce him there. It was one of the
most unmanly statements he had ever heard in
that Chamber, and he had heard a good many
bad ones.

The PREMIER : Nobody believes it.

Mr. MOREHEAD rose to a point of order
He did not think that either the hon. member
who had just sat down or the Premier was in
order in dishelieving a statement made by a
member of that Committee.

The CHAIRMAN : There is no point of order
in one hon. member not believing a statement
made by another hon. member, but it would be a
point of order if an hon. member repeated a
statement which had been denied by another
hon. member.

Mr. STEVENSON said the Premier inter
jected just now, ‘“ Nobody believes him.”

The PREMIER : Isaid ¢ Nobody believes it,”
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Mr., STRVENSON said the Premier distinctly
used the words ‘‘Nobody believes him.” He
was perfectly willing to take a division on that
point; and notwithstanding what the Premier
said, he was perfectly willing to put his word
against the word of that hon. gentleman, oragainst
the word of the hon. member for Stanley. He
quite agreed that all the members of the (Jueens-
land Club were not gentlemen.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he did not suppose
that any hon. member cared two straws whether
the members of the Queensland Club were gentle-
men or not. The word ‘‘gentleman” was one
that was applicable far beyond the number of
those who were included within the select circle
over the road. Anyone who paid his way, and
told the truth, and did his duty honestly in the
state of life into which he was called, was as
much a gentleman as anybody on the earth. He
was sorry the word had been introduced into
the debate at all.

“When Adam delved and Lve span,

Who was then a gentleman?”’
Anyone who paid his way honestly was a gentle-
man. He was not a socialist or a comuunist,
but still he held that opinion. It was quite
another matter when an hon. member was
directly contradicted by the Premier. That was
a breach of order.

The PREMIER: To contradict a charge
made against the honour of the Government was
a breach of order!

Mr. MOREHEAD said he thought the Gov-
ernment was something like a corporation, with-
out a soul to be saved or something else to be
kicked. He was now generalising ; but if the
Premier wished to bring his statement home to
himself he was at liberty to do so. If the
Premier thought the Government of which he
(Mr. Morehead) was a member, was a (Govern-
ment of rogues, he was welcome to think so. He
was no rogue, and he knew that no mem-
ber of that Government was a rogue, and
he knew that the combination were mno
rogues. He did not care if the Premier was
pleased to consider the Government that pre-
ceded him was a Government of rogues, while he
(Mr. Morehead) knew they were honest. The
contradiction given by the Premier to the state-
ment made by the hon. member for Normanby
was unworthy of him, and unworthy of the
position he held.

The PREMIER: According to the hon.
member, it was wrong to deny a false charge.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he did not say so.
But it was wrong to assert that a statement
made by a gentleman was false until it was
proved to be false.

Mr. CHUBB said it was a great pity that
their two nights’ discussion should terminate in
such an angry manner. Up to the present the
discussion had gone on with perfect good
temper, and it was much to be deprecated that
they should separate with angry feelings. He
thought both members had gone a little too far.

Mr. STEVENSON said he did not care
whether the hon, member for Bowen thought he
had gone too far or not ; he would maintain the
position he had taken up. Since Mr, Macdonald-
Paterson had vacated the position of leader of the
Upper House he had heard him advise members
of the Assembly before they voted for the railway
to go and look at the country. Several hon. mem-
bers could bear witness to that statement, and he
was very sorry Mr, Macdonald-Paterson could
not be present to back up the statement he made.
Did the Premier mean to say that he (Mr.
Stevenson) had stated what was not true in the
Committee? He had not said one single word
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inside or outside that he could not prove to be
true, notwithstanding anything to the contrary
the Premier might say. The Premier did not like
the truth, and that was why he objected to the
statement he had made. The whole railway was
a sham from beginning to end, and even if it were
passed by that Committee, the Premier would
arrange to have it blocked in the Upper House.
At any rate, he was in such a position that he
could not construct the line, even if it passed
both Houszes of Parliament, because the finances
of the colony were in such a state that he could
not get the money. The Premier knew very
well that there were other lines that ought to be
constructed long before that from Warwick to
Thane’s Creek.

Mr. KELLETT said he had risen to take the
part of an absent member. He was sure that if
Mr, Macdonald-Paterson had been present, no
such statement would ever have been made in
that Committee as had been.

Mr. MURPHY : What authority have you
for saying that?

Mr., XELLETT said he had the very best
authority—that of the late Postinaster-General,
whose word was better than the word or even
the bond of a good many hon. members on the
other side of the Committee. He judged men
by what he knew of them. He knew a good
many hon. members who sat opposite; he
knew the inside of them., He had had their
measure for many years,

Mr. MURPHY : There’s not much inside of
you.

Mr. KELLETT said he had lived in the
country long before many of those members who
had come from Victoria knew anything about it,
and he knew previous history that the hon.
member for Barcoo did not know., But he knew
an honourable man when he met him, and he
said again that he was satisfied that if Mr, Mac-
donald-Paterson was in that Chamber no such
statement would ever have been made. If he
lived long enough he would be there again,
and on the floor of the House he would
be able to defend himself in lanenage much
more forcible than he (Mr. Xellett) had
made use of. He was satisfied that that
gentleman had wused his utmost endeavours
to get that railway passed through the Upper
House, He knew well, also, that nothing could
grieve him more than when that line was lost in
the Upper House. He would go further, and
say that though Mr. Macdonald-Paterson had
thought fit to sever his connection with his party
he did so honourably, and that he was still an
honourable and consistent member of the Liberal
party.

Mr. MOREHEAD said, of course he did not
know what the internal construction of hon.
members on his side was.

Mr. KELLETT: I do.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he thought the hon.
member would be a very valuable medical adviser
if he knew the construction of the insides of the
people. He was not going to dispute the wild
and vehement statements of the hon. member—he
appeared to be rather too flery a gentleman to
deal quietly with; but with regard to his defence
of Mr. Macdonald-Paterson, he had no doubt that
gentleman would appear on the floor of the
House some day and defend himself, but he did
not think he would walk in at the door at that
present moment and explain what he did and
what he did not, and he thought they might fairly
wait until the proper period arrived. It would
be much pleasanter to listen to what Mr. Mac-
donald-Paterson had to say, because, from his
lknowledge of him, he was sure that he would
speak in a more moderate and less fiery manner
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than his attorney, or friend, or relation, the
member for Stanley. Now he really did not
know why that excessive exuberance of debate
had come on. They had got on very nicely
before, and he really did not know what had
brought on the warmth.

The PREMIER: You were not here when I
moved the Chairman out of the chair.

Mr. MOREHIEAD said he was aware of that ;
he was aware of the position that had been
vacated by the gentleman who so'amply filled
the position that Mr. Fraser occupied. e had
no desire to introduce any element of discord
into the debate. e was willing that the Chair-
man should leave the chair, and he was quite
sure that the Chairman desired the rest and
quietness and peace which he would get by
leaving the chair. But he (Mr. Morehead)
wanted to see the chair vacated without any
jarring and unpleasant remarks. They had been
fighting a good fight, and whether there was
going to be a truce or a surrender, he was not
prepared to say; but whatever it might be, he
was quite sure that the hon. member at the head
of the Government was as desirous as he was
that the Chairman should leave the chair. His
{Mr. Morehead’s) side of the House was per-
fectly satisfied with the work that had been
done, and he was only sorry that any language
of a strong nature wused by hon. gentlemen
opposite had induced any unpleasantness.

Myr. KELLETT : It was on your side.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he hoped that hon.
gentlemen would not interrupt him, He was
not using language calculated to provoke a breach
of the peace, and, in fact, he was so alarmed at
the attitude taken up by the Colonial Secretary
the other night that he was very careful what
language he did use. He trusted that the Chair-
man would be allowed to leave the chair, and, he
hoped, not to resume it during the current Par-
liament.

Mr. STEVENSON said, before the Chairman
left the chair he wished to say a few words in
defence of the late Postmaster-General, and,
without using any private conversations at all,
he wished simply to point to that gentleman’s
public statement. As he had already said, he
had introduced a deputation to him in regard to
a bi-weekly or tri-weekly mail service from
Warwick to Goondiwindi, and that hon. gentle-
man distinctly stated that the traffic along that
line was not sufficient to justify him in granting
a bi-weekly or tri-weekly mail service, Well,
was not that a proof, on the face of it, that he
was not in earnest in trying to pass the Warwick
to St. George railway ? He thought that must
be patent to every hon. gentleman in the House,
and that wus all he had got to say with regard
to the late Postmaster-General.

Mr. MORGAN said he thought it right to say
a word or two in reply to the matter which had
been imported into the debate by the hon. mem-
ber for Normanby. The hon. gentleman rose for
the express purpose of accusing the Government
of insincerity in regard to that railway, which had
been before the Committee four or five times
during the present session. Well, the conduct of
the gentlemen who sat with the member for
Normanby during the past forty-eight hours had
amply demonstrated to them that if they, on his
side, had weak friends they had got very strong
and uncompromising foes on the other side.
That was perfectly clear, and was a fact not to
be lost sight of. He wished to make that
remark, and also to say that the hon. member’s
references to the late Postmaster-General con-
tained serious aspersions upon the sincerity
of that gentleman’s actions in the Legisla-
tive Cecuncil, and also upon those of another
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gentleman of the Council, the Hon. Dr.
Taylor, which were not borne out by the
facts. He was pretty familiar with the details
which led to the unfortunate blunder made in
the Legislative Council last year, It was a
bungle, and nothing else, produced by a combi-
nation of circumstances unfortunate to those
who desited to see that railway constructed.
There had not been the slightest premeditation
in the matter, and he did nect believe the mem-
bers of the Government or their supporters had
acted in a treacherous manner,

The PREMIER : Nor does anyone else.

. Mr. MORGAN said that was his opinion, and
it was founded upon a knowledge of the facts
more extensive than that of the hon. member for
Normanby.

Question—That the Chairman leave the
chair, report no progress, and ask leave to sit
again—put and passed.

The House resumed, and, on the motion of
the MINISTER FOR WORKS, the Committee

obtained leave to sit again to-morrow.

ADJOURNMENT,

The PREMIER said: Mr. Speaker,—I beg to
move that this House do now adjourn.

Question put and passed, and the House
adjourned at seven minutes to 11 o’clock.





